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August 5, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with The Lakes
Region Mental Health Center, Inc. {VC#154480 - B001), Laconia, NH for the continued provision of
a permanent housing program to individuals experiencing homelessness through the Federal
Continuum of Care Program, by increasing the price limitation by $48,659 from $85,739 to $134,398
and by extending the completion date from January 31, 2022 to January 31, 2023, effective upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on January 22, 2020, item
#13, amended on May 6, 2020, item #41, and most recently amended on March 24, 2021, item #8.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svos
TBD

$18,305 $0 $18,305

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD

$42,066 $0 $42,066

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs TBD
$25,368 $0 $25,368

2022 074-500589

Grants for

Public Asst

and Relief
TBD

$0 $21,783 $21,783

2023 074-500589
Grants for

Public Asst

and Relief

TBD
$0 $26,876 $26,876

Total $85,739 $48,659 $134,398

The Di'/Kiilincnl of lleallh and Huinaii Scirjces' Mission is In join coininiinilws and fainilins

in providing opporlnnilies for cilizuns to ncliiei^c health and inde/Mnidence.
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EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion date and there are no renewal options available.

Annually. HUD releases a Continuum of Care Program competition. As part of this
competition, the Department (as the Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State Continuum of
Care) is required to issue a Request for Proposals based on the HUD application. HUD issues strict
guidelines that specify the eligible activities, populations to be served, expected performance
outcomes, and time frames for the competition. All project applications, new and renewal, are
scored based on a Rank and Review Policy and scoring tools that are created to match the HUD
Notice of Funding Availability. Project applications are ranked in order of score from highest to
lowest, and are funded based on this ranking process. Low performing projects are issued a
corrective action plan and are given a year to correct performance issues. This process is guided
by a Reallocation Policy, as required by HUD. Ail project applications arvj individual project score
are reviewed by HUD t. HUD informs the Continuum of Care of the funding amount for all renewal
projects. Funding for new projects is determined by the amount of bonus funding, if any, is made
available by HUD. The purpose of this request is to continue delivery of a Permanent Housing
Program that provides permanent housing and supportive services, as well as associated
administrative services, to individuals facing hometessness. This request adds funds included in
the Notice of Federal Award dated April 5, 2021.

Approximately seven (7) individuals will be served at any given time annually.

The Contractor provides permanent housing and supportive services to individuals who are
experiencing homelessness or Chronic.Homelessness, helping them to live more independently.

The Department ensures contract compliance and vendor performance in the following ways:

•  Annual compliance reviews that Include the collection of data relating to compliance with
administrative rules and contractual agreements.

•  Statistical reports that include various demographic information and income and expense
reports, including match dollars.

• Maintenance of timely and accurate data entry in the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and
activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these contracts. .

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Section 2, Renewal, Subsection 2.1. of the original contract,
the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to one (1) additional year, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor
and Council approval. The Departrfient has exhausted it's one-year renewal option, but is extending
this agreement for an additional year in response to the HUD Ending directive.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families in
unsafe or potentially deadly situations vtrithout a safety net. Additionally, if data is not collected, as
required by these contracts, the Department will be incompliant with federal regulations, which could
result in a loss of federal funding for these and other types of homeless and permanent housing
supportive services.
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Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number# 14.267, FAIN# NHC002L1T002012

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

0^'
Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care. Summer Street Permanent Housing contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc., ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on January 22, 2020 (Item #13), as amended on May 6. 2020 (Item #41), and, as most recently amended
on March 24, 2021 (Item #8), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1,'Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2, Renewal, Subsection 2.1., the Contract may be amended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

January 31, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$134,398

3. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, Project Costs:
Payment Schedule: Review by the State, Subsection 3.4 Payment of Project Costs, Paragraph
3.4.1, to read:

3.4.1 The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this agreerhent, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items as specified in Exhibit B-1 Amendment #3, Budget Sheet, and as
defined by HUD under the provisions of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable
regulations, subject to the availability of sufficient funds.

4. Modify Exhibit B-1 Budget - Amendment #2 (2020/2021) and Exhibit B-2, Budget (2022) by
replacing both exhibits in their entirety with Exhibit B-1 Amendment #3.

5. Add Exhibit B-1 Amendment #3, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

MA,f

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-12-A03 The Lakes Region Menial Health Center, Inc. Contractor Initials -

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of3 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Harhpshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date 8/12/2021

-DocuSigned by;

Title: Di rector

Date 8/11/2021

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

/W. fY\{(korl
lamef'"^^'^*^'"®^ m. Pn'tchard

DocuSignetf by;

Title: CEO

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-12-A03 The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSlgntd by:

CtfCMBOCCOgOMC..

Date 8/13/2021 Name: Catherine Pinos

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of.
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ; {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date , Name:

Title:

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-12-A03 The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3



DocuStgn Envtlep* ID: A0FESEFF.4«C)-4IMM«IS-SCF92A5D1C32

Exhibit B-1 Amendment 03, Budget Sheet

Summer St

CoC Funds SFY20 • 2/1/20-6/30/20 - .

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Operations S 17.903 $  • S $  - $ S 17.903 $  • S  ' • •

Administration S 402 $  • $ $ '$ • • $ S 402 $  • s

25% Required Match s 4.631 $  - $ S 4,631 $  - $ $  • $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE i 22,936 s  . $ 4.631 $  • $ s 18,306 $  - $

SFY21 - 7/1/20:6/30/21 • ̂

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Operations $ 41.099 $  • $ S • 6. • $ S 41.099 $  - $

Administration S 967 $  • S S - $' - $ s 967 s  • S

25% Required Match S 11.383 $  • $ s 11,383 '  ■ $  • s • • s  ■ $

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE s S3.449 $• - s ̂  . s 11.383 $• •s ^ s 42,066 s  t $

SFY22 ■ 7/1/21-6/30/22 - •

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Operations S 46,185 $  - $ • • S  . $  . $ $ 46,185 $ $

Administration $ 966 $  - $  ". $ s  - $, - s 966 S  - $  ,

25% Required Match S 11,760 $  - S S 11,760 $ $ $  - $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE s 58,911 S S  , $ 11,760 s  - $  . 1. ■ s 47.151 $  • $.

SFY23 - 7/1/22-1/31/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Operations S 26,313 S  - $  ; $ S  - $ $ 26,313 $- • $

Administration s 563 s  ■ $ $ s  • $ S 563 $  - $  '.

25% Required Match s 6,860 S- •- $ $  6.860 $ $  . - $  - $  '

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $ . 33,736 s  - $  , t  6.860 ,$ • S s 26,876 $ $

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-12-A03

Exhibit 6-1 Amendment 03, Budget Sheet

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

[7^
8/11/2021

Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE LAKES REGION MENTAL

HEALTH CENTER, INC is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on July

14, 1969.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this oifice is concerned.

Business ID: 64124

Certificate Number: 0005380007

sa.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afiixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 11th day of JuneA.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 , SoZ-^ hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of T7i£ 'PecKioo fDeyn-l-A.! liczii-fh JZ^iC
{Corporation/LLC N^iie)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Z. . 20^/ . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

sT (Date)

VOTED: That .M- Tli k-h ^ C-^n> (may list more than one person)
(Nam'd^nd Title of Contract Signatofy)

is duly authorized on behalf of fDen-hzc-i enter Into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

■ Dated: Aa^ust 2, 2^^
Signature of Elected Officer '
Name: 3ozxl.
Title: LJt)-Trffl-sarCK

Rev. 03/24/20
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AC^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATEIMM/DOlYm)

06^4/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. "miS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endor8ement(s).

PRODUCER

Cross Insurance-Laconia

1S5 Court Siisei

Lsconla , NH 03246

Sarah Cullen.AINS.ACSR

JK™ F..V (SOS) 524-2425 | ;(603) 524-3666
AMmeas; •amh.cullen®crossagency.com

rNSURERratAFFOROWO COVERAGE NAICI

msuRERA: AceAmerican InsurenceCompany
tNSURSO

Lake* Region Mental Health Center, Inc., DBA; Genesis Behavioral

40 Beacon Street Best

Laconia NH 03246

INSURER B: ace Property & Casualty Ins Co

INSURER c: Hampshire Employers Ins Co 13063

INSURER D ;

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES . CERTtFICATE NUMBER: 012162461712 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECTTO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAJN, THE WSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUCIES. HMFTS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

l-TR TYPE OFMSURANCE FimiWi POLICY NUMBER
. WLieVEFF
IMM/nn/YYYYl IMUVDOnrYYYJ LMTTS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL OENERAL LiABJtrTY

e 1 XI OCCUR

SVRD37803801011 08/26/2021 06/26/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE , 1.000,000

1 ClAIMS-tAAO CtAMAfiETOitbNIED , 250,000

MEOEXP (Anvona MnonI , 25.000

PERSONALSAOVINJURY ^ , 1.000,000

1 OENtAOOREOATEUmT APPLIES PER: OENERALAOGREOATE , 3,000,000

X POLICY 1 I JBCT 1 1 IOC
OTHER;

PRODUCTS. COMP/OPAOO ', 3,000,000

□ Employee Benefits Lieb . t 1,000,000

A

1 AUTOUOBU LIABSJTY

CALH08618574011 06/26/2021 06/26/2022

COMBINED SINGLE UMR- S 2,000.000

X ANY AUTO

;heduled
fTOS
)N-OVVNEO
ITOSONLV

BODILY INJURY (Per paraon)
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SC
AU eOOlLV INJURY (Par acckMni) 1

,NC
•AU

PROPERTY DAMAGE .
(Par acddann- s

Medical payments $ 1.000

8
X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAS

X OCCUR

CLAIU8-MA0E XO(3G25516540011 06/26/2021 06/26/2022
EACH occurrence' , 4.000,000

•

AOGREOATE , 4,000,000 '
1 OED 1x1 RETENTIONS 'O-OOO j

1

C

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND eUPLOYERS' UABIUTY y / H
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER^tECUnvE rTTI
OrPICEAMEMBER EXCLUDED? 1
(Mandatory In MH)
Lfvas. daacrlba underoisCRIPnOH OF OPERATIONS batow

N/A ECC-600.4000fi07-2021A 06/26/2021 06/26/2022

V' PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT , 1.000.000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE ' 1.000.000

E.L DISEASE • POLICY UUIT , 1.000.000

A
Professlonal Liability

OGLG25S1662A011 06/26/2021 061^6/2022

Each incident

Aggregate

"  5,000,000

7,000.000

DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES <ACORD 101. AcWItlonal Remark* SchaSula, may Im attaeNad H mora apaca U raqulrad) l'

CERTIFJCATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state of New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services
120 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301-3657
.  :i

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRJBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WTH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AtHHORlZED REPRESENTATIVB

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
01966-2015 ACORD'CORPORATION.' All rights rflserved.

The ACORD nsme and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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mh.

s
Lakes Region

Mental Health

Mission Vision & Values

Lakes Region Mental Health Center's mission is to provide integrated mental and physical health care
for people with mental illness while creating wellness and understanding in our community.

(Revised & Approved by the Board of Directors, 9/15/15)

Our Vision

Lakes Region Mental Health Center is the community leader providing quality, accessible and

Integrated mental and physical health services, delivered with dedication and compassion.

(Revised & Approved by the Board of Directors, 9/15/15)

Our Values

RESPECT
We conduct our business and provide services with respect and

professionalism.

ADVOCACY
We advocate for those we serve through enhanced collaborations,
community relations and political action.

INTEGRITY
We work with integrity and transparency, setting a moral compass
for the agency.

STEWARDSHIP
We are effective stewards of our resources for our clients and our

agency's health.

EXCELLENCE We are committed to excellence in all programming and services.
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020
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TABLE OF CONTENTS

June 30, 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Paoes

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Financial Position 1

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 2

Statementof Cash Flows ' 3

Notes to Financial Statements 4

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Analysis of Accounts Receivable 13

Analysis of BBH Revenues, Receipts and Receivables 14

Statement of Functional Public Support and Revenues 15

. Statement of Functional Expenses 16



DocuSign Envelope ID; A0FE5EFF-46C3-415O-A618-5CF92A5D1C32

f
t

Kittell Branagan Sargent
Ccrliftcd Public Accoiinianls

Vermont License *167

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

of The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
(a nonprofit organization) which comprise of the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2020, and the
related statement of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and .fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial, statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial staternents in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the,
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion. . ,

154NorthMairiStreet, St: Albans. Vermont 05478 | P 802.524.9531 | 800:499.9531 | F 802.524.9533

www.kb9cpo.cbm
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To the Board of Directors

of The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all.material respects, the financial
position of The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. as of June 30,.2020, and the changes in Its net
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
Analysis of Accounts Receivables, the Analysis of BBH Revenues, Receipts & Receivables arid schedules
of functional public support, revenues and expenses on pages 13-16 are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such Information is the
responsibility of nhanagement and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the Information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

St. Albans, Vermont
September 30, 2020
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash $ 4,270,465

Investments ' 1,730,350

Accounts receivable {net of $1,676,000 allowance) 980,344

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 56,457

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 7.037,616

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET 5,695.451

TOTAL ASSETS $ 12,733,067

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 151,612

Current portion long-term debt ' 869,890

Accrued payroll and related 721,472

Deferred income 336,652

Accrued vacation 394,151

Accrued expenses 62,791

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,536,568

LONG-TERM DEBT, less current portion

Notes and Bonds Payable 5,255,763

Less: unamortized debt issuance costs (86,992)

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 5,168,771

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,705,339

NET ASSETS

Net assets without donor restrictions 5,027,728

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 12,733,067

See Notes to Financial Statements



OocuSign Envelope ID: A0FE5EFF-46C3-4150-A618-5CF92A5O1C32

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES

Public support -

Federal

State of New Hampshire - BBH

Other public support

Total Public Support

Net Assets

without Donor

Restrictions

375,343

710,479

294.591

1,380,413

Revenues -

Program service fees

Rental income

Other revenue

Total Revenues

TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES.

12,694,063

85,938

492,378

13,272,379

14,652,792

EXPENSES

BBH funded program services -

Children Services

Multi-service

ACT

Emergency Services

Housing Services

Non-Eligible

Non-BBH funded program services

TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS

2,854,685

6,216,852

1,243,654

1,157,090

876,871

481,365

1,338,732

14,169,249

483,543

OTHER INCOME

Gain on sale of fixed asset

Investment income

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

212,252

56,651

268,903

TOTAL INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, beginning

NET ASSETS, ending

752,446

4,275,282

S  &.027.728

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile to net cash

provided by operations:

Depreciation and Amortization

Gain on sale of asset

Unrealized loss on investments

(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable & accrued liabilities
Deferred income

$  752.446

302,827

(212,252)

56,102

264,679

87,127

134,169

236,617

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,621,715

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of assets

Purchases of property and equipment
Net investment activity

290,940

(201,616)
(110,252)

NET CASH (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (20,928)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of debt

Principal payments on long-term debt
1,687,500

(103,988)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,583,512

NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

3,184,299

1,086,166

CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 4,270,465

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE

Cash Payments for Interest

Fixed Assets Acquired through Acquisition of Long-Term Debt

$  126,950

$. 249,537

See Notes to Financial Statements
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020
y

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

OrQanization

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. (the Center) is a not-for-profit corporation,
organized under New Hampshire law to provide services In the areas of mental health, and

. related non-mental health programs: it is exempt from income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the Center qualifies for the charitable contribution
deduction under Section 170 (b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2).

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

(

Depreciation

The cost of property, equipment and leasehold improvements is depreciated over the
estimated useful life of the assets using the straight line method. Estimated useful lives range
from 3 to 40 years.

State Grants

The Center receives a number of grants from and has entered into various contracts with the
, State of New Hampshire related to the delivery of mental health services.

Vacation Pav and Frinoe Benefits

Vacation pay is accrued and charged to the programs when earned by the employee. Fringe
benefits are allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual
time spent on the programs.

Revenue

Revenue from federal, state and other sources is recognized in the period earned.

Client Service Revenue

The Center recognizes client service revenue relating to services rendered to clients that
have third-party payer coverage and are self-pay. The Center receives reimbursement from

. Medicare, Medicaid and Insurance Companies at defined rates for services to clients
covered by such third-party payer programs. The difference between the established billing
rates and the actual rate of reimbursement is recorded as allowances when received. For

services rendered to uninsured clients (i.e., self-pay clients), revenue is recognized on the
basis of standard or negotiated discounted rates. At the time services are rendered to self-
pay clients, a provision for bad debts is recorded based on experience and the effects of
newly identified circumstances and trends in pay rates. Client service revenue (net of
contractual allowances and discounts but before taking account of the provision, for bad
debts) recognized during the year ended June 30, 2020 totaled $11,519,963, of which
$11,370,140 was revenue from third-party payers and $149,823 was revenue from self-pay
clients.
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Third Party Contractual Arrangements

A significant portion of patient revenue is derived from services to patients insured by third-
party payers. The center receives reimbursement from Medicare. Medicaid, Blue Cross, and
other third^party insurers at defined rates for services rendered to patients covered by these
programs. The difference between the established billing rates and the actual rate of
reimbursement Is recorded as allowances when recorded. A provision for estimated
contractual allowances Is provided on outstanding patient receivables at the balance sheet
date.

Basis for Presentation

The financial statemerits of the Center have been prepared on the accrual basis In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The financial statements are presented in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Accounting Standards. Codification (ASC) 958 dated August, 2016, and the
provisions of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AlCPA) "Audit arid
Accounting Guide for Not-for-Profit Orgnizations" (the "Guide"). (ASC) 958-205 was effective
January 1, 2018.

Under the provisions of the Guide, net assets and revenues and gains and losses are
classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the
net asset of the Center and changes therein are classified as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor
imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary
objectives of the Center. The Center's board may designate assets without
restrictions for specific operational purposes from time to time.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by
donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those
restrictions will be met by actions of the Center or by the passage of time. Other

. donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds
be maintained in perpetuity.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded based on the amount billed for services provided, net of
respective allowances.

Policy for Evaluating Collectabilitv of Accounts Receivable

In evaluating the collectability of accounts receivable, the Center analyzes past results and
identifies trends for each major payer source of revenue for the purpose of estimating the
appropriate amounts of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Data in each major payer
source is regularly reviewed to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts.
Specifically, for receivables relating to services provided to clients having third-party
coverage, an allowance for doubtful accounts and a corresponding provision for bad debts
are established for amounts outstanding for an extended period of time and for third-party
payers experiencing financial difficulties; for receivables relating to self-pay clients, a
provision for bad debts is made in the period services are rendered based on experience
indicating the inability or unwillingness of clients to pay amounts for which they are financially
responsible.
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Based on management's assessment, the Center provides for estimated uncollectible
amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance. Balances that
remain outstanding after the Center has used reasonable collection efforts are written off
through a change to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable.

The allowance for doubtful accounts was $1,676,000 and $906,500 for the years ended June
30, 2020 and 2019. Total patient accounts receivable increased to $2,135,814 as of June
30, 2020 from $1,871,450 at June 30, 2019. As a result of changes to payer mix present at
year end the allowance as a percentage of total accounts receivable increased from 48% to
78% of total patient accounts receivable.

Advertisino

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Total costs were $92,537 at June 30, 2020 and
consisted of $56,863 for recruitment and $35,674 for agency advertising.

NOTE 2 CLIENT SERVICE REVENUES FROM THIRD PARTY PAYORS

The Center has agreements with third-party payors that provide payments to the Center at
established rates. These payments include:

New Hampshire and Manaoed Medicaid

The Center is reimbursed for services from the State of New Hampshire and Managed
Care Organizations (MCOs) for services rendered to Medicaid clients. Payments for
these services are received in the form of monthly capitation amounts that are
predetermined In a contractual agreement with the MCOs.

Approximately 81% of program service fees is from participation in the State and Managed
Care Organization sponsored Medicaid programs for the year ended June 30. 2020. Laws
and regulations governing the Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation
and change. As a result, it Is reasonably possible that recorded estimates could change
materially in the near term.

As part of the contractual arrangement with the MCOs, the Center is required to provide a
specific amount of services under an arrangement referred to as a Maintenance of Effort
(MOE). Under the MOE, if levels of service are not met the Center may be subject to
repayment of a portion of the- revenue received. The MOE' calculation is subject to
interpretation and a source of continued debate and negotiations with MCOs. This MOE
calculation may result in a liability that would require a payback to the MCOs. Additionally,
please refer to Note 14 regarding MOE being waived for the entire year ended June 30,
2020.
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The Center elects to capitalize all purchases with a useful life of greater than one year and a
cost of $2,000 or more. Property and equipment, at cost, consists of the following:

Land, buildings and improvements

Buildings and improvements

Computer equipment

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Vehicles

Artwork

Construction in progress

Accumulated depreciation

$ 107,600

5,911,379

1,097,638

657,701

139,738

26,925

380,755

8,321,736

(2,626,285)

NET BOOK VALUE $ 5.695.451

NOTE 4 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - TRADE

Due from clients

Receivable from insurance companies

Medicaid receivables

Medicare receivables

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Total Receivable - Trade

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - OTHER

Bridge Subsidy

HUD

State of New Hampshire - Surge Center

LTCS

BBH - Bureau of Behavioral Health

Lakes Region Healthcare

MCO Directed Payments
Other Grants and Contracts

Total Receivable - Other

155,294

695,944

955,885

328,691

2,135,814

(1,676,000)

459,814

11,482

8,103

140,500

85,500

23,130

56,234

125,224

70,357

520,530

TOTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE $  980,344
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTES LINE OF CREDIT

As of June 30, 2020, the Center had available a line of credit with an upper limit of
$1,000,000 with a local area bank. At that date, $-0- had been borrowed against the line of
credit. These funds are available at a variable rate of interest, with a floor no less than 4.0%
per annum, currently 5.50%. The availability under this line will be limited to 70% of the
current market value of the Vanguard Funds which have been pledged to the local area
bank. This line of credit expires June 9. 2021.

NOTE 6 COMMITMENTS

The corporation leases real estate and equipment under various operating leases. Minimum
future rental payments under non cancelable operating leases as of June 30, 2020 for each
of the next four years and in the aggregate are:

June 30.

2021

2022

2023

2024

Amount

64,329

41,127
41,127

41,127

Total rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2020, including rent expense for leases with
a remaining term of one year or less was $132,727.

NOTE 7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Center has the option to make contributions to a defined contribution 403(b) plan on
behalf of its employees. This program covers substantially all full-time employees. During the
year ended June 30, 2020 the total contributions into the plan were $116,449. Total
administrative fees paid into the plan for the year ended June 30, 2020 were $13,679.

NOTE 8 LONG-TERM DEBT

As of June 30, 2020, long-term debt consisted of the following:

2.97% bond payable - Meredith Village Savings Bank due in monthly

installments of $19,288 (principal and interest) beginning in

June 2019. Secured by building through June, 2047. $4,188,616

4.45% note payable - Meredith Village Savings Bank. Interest only

July 2020 - December 2020 then installments of $993 (principal a

and Interest). Secured by building through November, 2030. 96,000
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTES LONG-TERM DEBT {continued)

4.45% construction loan - Meredith Village Savings Bank. Interest only

July 2020 - December 2020 then installments of $3,247 (principal a

and interest). As of June 30, 2020 there is $390,463 remaining to
be drawn on this note for a total available of $544,000. Secured by

building through November, 2040. 153,537

1.0% PPP loan payable - Meredith Village Savings Bank. Interest

accrued April 2020 - November 2020 then monthly installments of

$94,494 (principal and interest). Due April, 2022.

Less; Current Portion

1,687,500

6,125,653

(869,890)

Total long-term debt

Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs

5,255,763

(86,992)

Total Long-Term Debt net with Related Costs $5,168,771

Expected maturities for the next five years are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,

2021

2022

■  2023

2024

2025

Thereafter

$  869,890

1,078,142

142,053

146,742

151,591

3,737,235

$ 6,125,653

NOTE 9 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Center receives money under various State and Federal grants. Under the terms of
these grants, the Center is required to use the money within the grant period for purposes
specified in the grant proposal and is subject to compliance reviews and audits by the grantor
agencies. It is the opinion of management that any liability, resulting from future grantor
agency audits of completed grant contracts, would not be material in relation to the overall
financial statements.
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 10 INVESTMENTS

Investments consist of amounts invested in various Vanguard Equity and Bond Funds. At
June 30. 2020, the status of these funds were as follONws:

Unrealized

Cost Market

Large Blend $  422,561 $  227,126 $ 649,687

Health 299,533 57,198 356,731

Large Growth 171.958 2,692 174,650

Mid-Cap Value 195,186 128,009 323,195

Short-Term Bond 226,503 (416) 226.087

$ 1,315,741 $ 414,609 $ 1,730,350

The related unrealized gain (losses) have been included in the investment income line on the
accompanying statement of activities. Investment income is aS follows:

Interest and Dividends

Realized Gains

Unrealized Losses

$ 31,631

,81,122

(56,102)

$  . 56,651

NOTE 11 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Professional accounting standards require a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The
three levels of the fair value hierarchy under these professional accounting standards are
described below:

Basis of Fair Value Measurement

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement
date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active or financial
instruments for which.all significant inputs are observable, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value
measurement and unobservable.

10
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 11 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

A financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of
any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

All investments are categorized as Level 1 and recorded at fair value, as of June 30, 2020.
As required by professional accounting standards, investment assets are classified in their
entirety based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

NOTE 12 CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

At June 30. 2020, the carrying amount of the cash deposits is $4,270,465 and the bank
balance totaled $4,293,673. Of the bank balance, $379,728 was insured by Federal Deposit
Insurance and $3,913,945 was offset by debt.

The Center grants credit without collateral to its clients, most of who are area residents and
are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables due from clients and
third-party payers at June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Due from clients

Insurance companies

Medicaid

Medicare

7 %

33

45

15

100 %

NOTE 13 . LIQUIDITY

The following reflects the Center's financial assets available within one year of June 30, 2020
for general expenditures:

Cash

Investments

Accounts receivable

$ 4,270,465

1.730,350

980,344

$ 6,981,159

Restricted deposits and reserves are restricted for specific purposes and therefore not
available for general expenditures.

As part of the Center's liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets
available as its general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due.

11



DocuSign Envelope ID: A0FE5EFF-46C3-4150-A618-5CF92A5D1C32
The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 14 RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES

As a result of the spread of the COVID-19 Coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen
which are likely to negatively impact net income. Other financial impact could occur though
such potential impact and the duration cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. Possible
effects may include, but are not limited to. disruption to the Center's customers and revenue,
absenteeism in the Center's labor workforce, unavailability of products and supplies used in
operations, and decline in value of assets held by the Center, including receivables and
property and equipment.

Due to these economic uncertainties the Center applied for and received Federal support
and aid funding through the Paycheck Protection. Program (aka PPP) and the Provider Relief
Fund, which was implemented as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
Act (CARES Act). These proceeds were used to cover payroll costs, certain interest
payments, rent, and utility costs. These funds were one-off unanticipated payments and any
future relief is uncertain.

On April 1, 2020, the Center successfully petitioned all three managed care organizations to
waive the Maintenance of Effort (MOE) provisions in each of the respective provider service
agreements. The waiver period is effective only for the period of July 1, 2019 through June
30, 2020, and Is thereafter reinstated. An extension to waive the MOE requirements beyond
this effective period-is also uncertain at this time.

NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with professional accounting standards, the Center has evaluated subsequent
events through September 30, 2020 which is the date the financial statement was available
to be issued. All events requiring recognition as of June 30, 2020, have been incorporated
into the financial statements herein.

12
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
,  ANALYSIS OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

For the Year Ended June 30. 2020

Accounts

Receivable

Beginning
of Year Gross Fees

Contractual

Allowances

and Other

Discounts

Given

Cash

Receipts

Accounts

Receivable

End

of Year

CLIENT FEES $  140,436 $  1,484,529 $  (1,334,706) :B  (134,965) :$  155,294

BLUE CROSS / BLUE SHIELD 158,683 718,911 (472,092) (128,166) . 277,336

MEDICAID 990,582 15,284,197 (4.940,903) (10,377,991) 955,885

MEDICARE 245,808 1,401,219 (903,131) (415,205) 328,691

OTHER INSURANCE
r

335,941 1,022,650 (740,711) (199,272) 418,608

ALLOWANCE FOR

DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS (906,500) - - _ (1,676,000)

TOTAL $  964,950 $  19,911,506 $  (8,391,543) JE (11,255,599) :B  459,814

13
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

ANALYSIS OF BBH REVENUES. RECEIPTS AND RECEIVABLES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Receivable

(Deferred

Income)

From

BBH

Beginning
of Year

BBH

Revenues

Per Audited

Financial

Statements

Receipts
for Year

Receivable

(Deferred

Income)

From

BBH

End of Year

CONTRACT YEAR. June 30. 2020 $  81,102 $ 392,488 .$ (450,460) $ 23,130

Analysis of Receipts

Date of Receipt
Deposit Date

07/25/19

.  07/31/19

09/04/19

09/06/19

09/10/19

09/23/19

09/26/19

10/02/19

10/11/19

10/31/19

11/01/19 ■

11/05/19

11/07/19

11/29/19

12/10/19

12/24/19

01/16/20

01/09/00

01/24/20

01/28/20

01/29/20

02/03/20

02/14/20

02/26/20

03/02/20

03/04/20

03/19/20

03/25/20

04/01/20

04/03/20

04/20/20

04/30/30

05/04/20

05/07/20

05/21/20

05/28/20

06/15/20

06/22/20

06/25/20

06/29/20

Less; Federal Monies

Amount

80,898 .

8,478

310

57,050

7,848

31,917

7,848

12,826

148

73,989

923

26,920

7,848

7,562

61,338.

7,511

47,939

10,279

9,441

228.

7,552

4,029

12,604

7,848

10,824

7,559

7,848

10,016

4,739

5,000

11,656

8,043

15,082

500

7,538

16,534

5,761

7,848

9,032

7,848

(178,702)

$  450,460

14
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center. Inc.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Housing Services Non 8BH

Total Total Multi Emergency Apts. S.L. Apts. S.L. Non Funded
Agency Admin. Programs Children -Service ACT Services Summer McGrath Eligible Programs

Program Service Fees:

Net Client Fee $  149,823 S - $  149,823 S  33,548 $  57,703 $ 22,240 S  (9,003) $ $ $ 45,360 $  (25)
Blue Cross/Blue Shield 246,819 - 246,819 96,728 74,780 2,449 27,549 - - 45,313

Medicsid 10,343.294
- 10,343,294 3,155,219 6,170,340 629,302 301,842 . . 86,591 -

Medicare 498,088 - 498,088 444,131 .  24,710 (1.872) -
. 31,119 .

Other Insurance 281,939 . 281,939 86,081 109,757 8,481 7,172 •  . . 70,448 .

Program Sales:

Service 1,174,100 - 1.174,100 71,509 93,685 . 8,855 . _ 5,421 994,630

Public Support - Other

United Way . 525 525 • - . . . . . . .

Local/County Government 140,970 - 140,970 - . . 117,970 . - 23,000
Donations/Contributions 51,458 49,470 1,988 - 788 . - 100 100 . 1,000

Other Public Support 101,638 69,104 32,534 6,237 5,547 250 225 50 75 20,075 75

Federal Funding:

HUD Grant 142,876 - 142,876 •  - - •  . - 43,041 99,835 . -

Other Federal Grants 232,467 53,851 178,616 - - . -
.

-
. 178,616

Rental Income 85,938 1,578 84,360 1,578 1,916 282 . 36,513 43,789 . 282

DBH & DS:

Community Mental Health 710,331 317,991 392,340 5,294 67,876 225,000 94,170 - . _ .

DCYF 148 - 148 148 . - . _ . .

Interest Income 408 408 . _ . . .

Other Revenues 491,970 255.860 236,110 4,194 52,531 85 58 2.761 8,307 405 167,769

14.652,792 748,787 13,904,005 3,460,536 7,079,054 912,799 546,966 82,465 152,106 327,732 1,342.347
Administration - (748,787) 748,787 186,365 381,236 49,158 29,456 4,441 8,191 17,649 72,291

TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND

REVENUES $ 14.652.792 $
4% 14,652,792 $ 3,646,901 S 7,460.290 $ 961,957 $  576,422 $  86,906 $  160,297 $ 345,381 $ 1.414,638

15
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The Lakes Region Mental H^lth Center. Inc.

Total

Aqencv Administration

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For tfie Year Ended June 30.2020

Total

Programs Chidren Multi-Service ACT

Emergency

Services

Housirx) Services

Apts, S.L Apts, S.L.

Summer McGralh Non-Eliqibls

Non BBH

Funded

Programs

Personnel Costs:

Salary and wages S 8.947.194 $  713.597 S 8.233.597 $ 1,574.505 S 3.622.143 S 791.478 S  746,757 $  173.489 $  196.451 S  308,877 S  819.897

Employee benefits 1.883.183 125.387 1,757,796 405.044 884.543 127.202 130.730 43.584 43,532 60.655 62.506

Payroll Taxes 643.133 64,941 578.192 119.250 253.350 52.980 54.880 12,594 14,335 22.795 48.008

Substitute Staff 168,153 126 168,027 502 69,739 ,18.188 22.617 42 63 63 56,813

PROFESSIONAL FEES AND CONSULTANTS:

Accounting/audit fees 65,617 65,617 . . - - - - . . .

Legal fees 25,335 25,335 - . .  • - - - - . .

Other professional fees 300,180 79,782 220,398 8.617 14.616 3.256 2.931 70,262 70,160 977 49,579

Staff Devel. & Training;

Journals & putilications 1,909 118 1,791 346 1.132 98 81 19 29 35 51

In-Service training 4,574 2,509 2.065 485 1,021 186 167 38. 56 56 56

Conferences & corwentions 55.776 10,894 44.882 6.471 29,853 2.112 2.234 928 993 607 1,684

Other staff development 32.163 3,242, 28,921 3.315 18,952 (168) 4.721 274 312 846 669

Occupancy costs;

Rerrt 90,408 3,925 86,483 35.706 37,330 812 722 .  180 271 3.391 8,071

Mortgage (Interest) 126,857 27,617 99,240 38.593 46.863 6.892 . - - - 6,892

Heating Costs 27.217 2,807 24,410 4.974 5.728 484 192 6,491 5,186 341 1,014

Other Utilities 72.355 10,463 61,892 14.732 16.616 1.570 - 11,793 13,678 552 2,951

Maintertance S repairs 171.745 38,018 133.727 43.441 50.616 7.088 1.024 13,008 10,020 999 7,531

Taxes 7,108 7,108 - - - - - . - .

Consumable Supplies;

Office 29,770 7,063 22,707 7.046 .  9,573 1.521 1.173 978 312 852 1,252

Buiding/household 35,152 14,846 20,306 4.359. 7,139 1.449 1.180 699 4,413 465 602

Medical 17.689 5,814 11,875 268 2,387 101 90 22 33 33 8,941

Other 146.645 8,579 138.066 35.186 61,324 13.237 11.786 2.904 4,356 4.357 4,916

Depreciation-Equipment 96.093 3,595 92,498 21.369 41.093 9.782 9.220 2.305 3,292 3.126 2,311

Depreciation-Building 206.734 49,428 157.306 45.533 55.194 8.051 - 13.690 26,641 42 8,155

Equipment rental 32.736 6,377 26,359 8.659 12.145 2.144 1.014 254 380 380 1,383

Equipmerrt maintenance .18.408 1,079 17,329 4.262 7.176 1.496 1.860 318 603 1.057 557

Advertising 92.537 2.851 89,686 11.537 20,104 4.287 3.811 952 1,428 1.438 46,129

Printing 1,972 1,902 70 - 70 . . - - - .

Telephone/communications 273.070 35,923 237.147 71.527 90.970 12.050 25.171 10.966 2.400 10.899 13.164

Postage/shippir>g 14,529 1.112 13,417 3.642 5.974 1.166 1.037 259 389 438 512

Transportation;

Staff 194,483 2.810 191,673 41.927 107,327 33.425 1.630 1.483 1,575 3.234 1.072

Clients 13.111 . 13.111 - 13.111 - . . . . .

Assist to Irxfividuals:

Client services 26.243 - 26.243 10.281 14.105 82 - 649 1.126 . .

Insurance:

Malpractice/bondirtg 66.118 16.654 49.464 12.629 22.100 4,738 4.210 1.052 1.579 1,579 1.579

Vehicles . 5.271 - 5.271 355 4.507 136 123 27 41 41 41

Comp. Property/liablity 34.767 9.755 25.012 7.086 10.012 1,717 1.164 1.587 1.678 623 1.145

Memt>ership Dues 36,807 1.088 35.719 30 53 • 11 10 3 4 4 35.604
Other Expenditures 204,207 184.247 19.960 3.830 6.666 1,390 1.236 3.550 2.165 468 655

14,169.249 1,534.609 12,634.640 2.545,507 5.543,532 1.108,959 1.031.771 374.400 407,501 429.230 1.193,740
Admin. Allocation - (1.534.609) 1.534.609 309,178 673.320 134,695 125.319 45.475 49,495 52.135 144,992

TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES $ 14.169,249 S S 14.169.249 S 2.854,685 S 6.216,852 $ 1,243.654 $  1,157.090 $  419,875 S  456,996 $  481.365 $ 1.338,732

16
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Lakes Region

Mental Health Center

Board of Directors Listing
June, 2021

POSITON •  NAME^ ■

President Gail Mears

Vice President Peter J. Minkow

Co-Treasurer Matthew Soza

Co-Treasurer Marsha Bourdon

Secretary Laura LeMein

Member-At-Large William Bolton

Member-At-Large Marlin Collingwood

Member-At-Large Ed McFarland

Member-At-Large Seifu Ragassa

Merhber-At-Large James Stapp

Member-At-Large Susan Steams

Member-At-Large Rev. Judith Wright

Respect Advocacy Integrity' Stewardship Excellence

40 Beacon Street East, Laconia, NH 03246 * Tel 603-524T100 * Fax 603-52SC760 * w^-w'.lrmhc.org
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Alison K. O'Neill, MS, LCMHC

State of New Hampshire Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor, License #795

Professional Experience:

Lakes Region Mental Health Services, Laconia NH
Director, Long Term Services and^Supports, October 2019 to Current
•  Oversee and manage four programs:

o  Bridge & Integrated Program, state funded program providing Bridge and Integrated housing vouchers, this
team provides support to patients in finding housing, and follow the patient for up to a year after obtaining stable
housing. The Integrated Program supports individuals who are recently released from prison finding housing in
the entire state of NH.

o  Housing Program, two residential housing units that house 24 residents/patients, this team supports patients
with their ADL's, providing case management, and functional support services,

o  Nursing Program, provides nursing services to all the adult patients within the agency. The Nursing Program is
the Liaison for our on-slte PCP/lntegrated Health and our onsite pharmacy for the entire agency,

o Older Adult and Neurocognitive Program, is a multidlsciplinary team providing services to adults with a mental
health diagnosis and either a developmental disability, traumatic brain injury or cognitive decline.

•  Provide regular supervision with a clinical and administrative focus for the managers of the four programs and for any
master level staff within the four programs. Provide supervision for Master's level interns and supervision for therapists
working towards their licensure in LCMHC.

•  Responsible for recruiting new staff/team members, to include screening candidates, participating in interview sessions,
assisting in the hiring decision and arh. responsible for the in program training of new staff/team members.

Clinical Coordinator, Neurocognitive Program, September 2015 to October 2019
•  Oversee an interdisciplinary team that provides services to patients admitted to the Neurocognitive program, which

provides services to patients with a rhental health diagnosis and a developmental or intellectual disability, or a traumatic
brain injury, or cognitive decline. Responsible for recruiting new staff/team members, to include screening candidates,
participating in interview sessions and assisting in the hiring decision.

•  Provide regular supervision with a clinical and administrative focus for bachelor and master level staff. Provide
supervision for Master's level interns and supervision for therapists working towards their licensure in LCMHC.

•  Participate in several agency committees such as; Training Committee, Employee Committee, Documentation Ad Hoc
Committee. Participate and collaborate with outside agencies, such as; Lakes Region Community Services, START
(including Committee, training) NH Elders Meeting. .

•  Respond to crisis situations as needed. Complete adult assessments. Provide individual and group therapy.
Participate in DBT Consult Group. Facilitate Therapist Consult Group.

•  Create and facilitate trainings on our electronic medical record (Essentia) and Dialectical Behavioral Therapy.
• Working collaboratively to create a Peer Support Program. Provide group supervision for Peer Support Specialist.

New England College, Henniker NH
Adjunct Professor, Masters Level Clinical Mental Health Program, August 2016 to current
•  Clinical Counseling Theories
•  Clinical Counseling Techniques

Allsoin K. O'Neill, MS, LCMHC, PLLC, Private Practice, Concord, NH ^
Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor, January 2013 to October 2015
• Worked with children, adolescents, adults, parents, families, and couples, providing individual, couples, and family

therapy, writing psychosocial assessments, treatment plans, and progress notes on all clients.
•  Responsible for all aspects of the business management i.e. credentialing, insurance contracting and invoicing,

accounts payable, accounts receivable, collections, referrals and any other communications. Responsibilities noted
below.

Northbrldge Counseling, Bedford and Concord, NH
Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor, June 2012 to March 2013
• Worked with children, adolescents, and adults, providing individual, couples, and family therapy, as well as seeing

clients through their employer EAP using Solution Focused Therapy, writing psychospcial assessments, treatment plans
and progress notes on all clients.
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Riverbend Community Mental Health Center, Children's Intervention Program, Concord, NH
Child and Family Therapist and Family Support Therapist, January 2007 to June 2012

•  For the first 6 months this was an intern position, I was the first master's level intern in the children's program, providing
therapy to children and families.

• ' Provided clinical services to children ages 4 to 18, providing individual, family and group therapy, including DBT
Adolescent group, TF-CBT and Helping the Non-Compliant Child.

•  Provided school based therapy, collaborated with school staff.

Therapeutic approaches utilized: Cognitive Behavioral Therapy, Dialectical Behavioral Therapy, Strength Based
Therapy, Solution Focused Therapy, Motivational Interviewing, Play Therapy, and Family Systems Therapy.

Education:

Springfield College of Human Services, St. Johnsbury, VT Springfield College of Human Services, Manchester, NH
Master of Science in Mental Health Counseling, 2007 Bachelor of Science in Human Services, 2005
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Celyne M. Godbout

SUMMARY

Creative, motivated, organized and well spoken, recent advanced degree graduate, with leadership skills, training
experience and 5 years of clinical experience, seeking a role to as a leader in the field of Human Services.

TKCHNICAL SUMMARY

MS Office Suite (Word, Excel, PowerPoint), Essentia (EMR)

EDUCATION

Walden University

Ph.D. Human Services-Moy 202\

VValden University

M.S. Psychology - April 2021
CPA-4.0

Southern NH University
Bachelors of Psychology - July 2017 . .
CPA - 3.5

EXPERIENCE

Lakes Region Mental Health, Laconia NH 2016 - Present
Coordinator ofLone Term Supports & Services. Mav 2021 - Present

Supervise team of 2 housing specialist, housing manager and pennanent supportive housing residential program.

Evaluate and manage budgets, payments and monthly expenses for program needs. Maintain harmonious
relationships with landlords, community members and tenants.
•Ensure HUD compliance with residential program and funding.
•New Employee Training - Housing Overview, which includes HUD guidance, state contracting, and enrollee
eligibility criteria.
• Review' modify, and implement Housing Bridge Program, PSH & Integrative program policies and procedures.
•Monitor and evaluate program quality on behalf of LRMHC.
•Prepare presentations and provide technical assistance on program to all LRMHC staff.
•Conduct research into HUD and New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority rules and guidelines to ensure
program integrity is maintained.
•Ensure positive outcomes for bridge, integrative clients and permanent supportive housing residents.

Prosram Manaser Jntesrative & Bridge. Oct 2019 - May 2021
Supervise team of 2 housing specialists. Evaluate and manage budgets, payments and monthly expenses for
program needs. Maintain harmonious relationships with landlords, community members and tenants.
•  Schedule and conduct training for CMlOl, and introductory Case Management training for new hires to

cover Ethics, Billing Codes, Boundaries and Hippa Regulations.
• New Employee Training - Bridge Overview, which includes HUD guidance, state contracting, and enrollee

eligibility criteria.
• Review, modify, and implement Housing Bridge Program policies and procedures.
• Monitor and evaluate program quality on behalf of LRMHC.
•  Prepare presentations and provide technical assistance on program to all LRMHC staff.
• Conduct research into HUD and New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority rules and guidelines to ensure

program integrity is maintained.
•  Ensure positive outcomes for bridge & integrative clients.

Emereencv Services SuDPorl. Sept 2019- April 2021
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Support clinicians in the emergency department with clinical assessments and paperwork. Provide clinical updates
to physicians, nurses and inpatient units regarding patient cases.
• Complete insurance authorization for patients seeking inpatient treatment.
•  Evaluate clinieal paperwork and ensure completeness.

Case Manasement Proeram and Represenlalive Payee Proeram Facililalor. June 2018 - Oct 2019

Superviised community case managers in their clinical roles. Supervised Peer Support Staff in their roles within the
clinical teams. Evaluated and monitored caseloads, and assigned cases as needed.
• Reviewed and evaluated the staff paperwork and deadlines.
• Approved payroll, managed scheduling.
• Coordinated and developed effective case planning for clients and families, ensuring quality standards were met
•  Involved in the hiring and onboarding of new staff.
• Researched appropriate program resources to ensure client needs were met.
• Managed Representative Payee Program accounts for clients, ensuring appropriate budgeting and benefits

were maintained.

Communilv Support Prosram Case Manager. June 2016 - June 2018
Supported and monitored adults with mental illness in the community and in their homes,
o Researched individualized resources and programs for clients based on assessed need.

• Monitored medication, prescriber/nursing services and provided resources.
• Researched and evaluated benefit program eligibility based on client's needs.
• Assessed and enacted safety planning and community based crisis intervention.

Elliot Hospital Jan 2014 - Jan 2015

Licensed Niirsins Assistant

Assisted patients with ADL's. Built a relaxing environment for resident and family members
• Assisted Nurses with care of patients.
• Monitor vital signs, and reeord efficiently in EMR.
• Float staff, experience working on specialized units such as Intensive Care, Maternity, and the Emergency

Department.

VOLUNTEER WORK

CASA Advocate - Central NH Region, March 2021 - Present
Member - NH Disaster Behavioral Health Response Team - Central NH Region, March 2021 - Present

REFERENCES

Furnished Upon Request
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KORI CONROY

H EFLER

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Hardworking end reliable, focused on going above and beyond fo support team and serve customers. Trained in

supporting and offering fop-notcti counseling abilities. Motivated to continue to learn and grow as a Mental

Heolfti professionol.

SKILLS

• Residentiol support

• Team support

• Generote reports

• Problem-solving

• Account management support

• Direct operations

• Motivation

• Verbal communication

EXPERIENCE

Housing Monoger. Lakes Region Mental Health Center.-Feb 2021 - Current, Loconio. NH

• Researctied and analyzed member needs to determine program goals, offerings, end areas in need of

improvement.

• Explained porticipont eligibility, program requirements, ond progrom benefits to potential clients.

•  Implemented improved troining progroms for staff and volunteers.

• Enforced residential rules to protect patients ond mointain readiness for different types of emergencies.

• Maintained and manoged residents" medication for st^ort- ond long-term treatment requirements.

Residential Therapeutic Support Specialist. Lakes Region Mental Health Center. Jon 2020 - Feb 2021. Loconio. NH

• Helped clients follow treatment plons by setting up oppointments. orronging tronsportotion, ond offering

personolized support.

• Counseled potients alone and wltti groups to assist ttirough difficult times ond improve coping witti mental

tieolth. medicol. or substance obuse issues.

• Coordinated timely meal preporotion. cleoning, and ottier hiousekeeping requirements.

• Enforced residential rules to protect potients ond maintain readiness for different types of emergencies.

• Assisted clients witti plonning budgets, meeting doily objectives and attending important appointments.

• Worked withi clients to identify thieir specific issues potential support options.

Support Staff, lakes Region Mental Health Center. Jul 2016 - Jon 2020. Loconio. NH

• Hondled administrative functions, including filing, typing, copying, ond foxing.

• Answered phones, greeted visitors, ond onswered bosic visitor questions.

• Operated office mochinery. including photocopiers, scanners, and telephone systems.

• Conducted research, assembled ond onalyzed doto. and submitted reports ond documents.
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EDUCATION

High School Diploma 20l l

Infer-lakes High School - Meredith, NH

Currently Attending

Southern New Hampshire University • Online.
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CONTRACTOR NAME: The Lakes Region Mental Health Center

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Alison O'Neill Director, Long Term Support
Ser\'ice$

$70,000 0% 0

Celyne Godbout Coordinator, Long Term
Support Services

$57,000 0% 0

Kori Conroy-Hefler Housing Facilitator , $46,000 0% 0
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Ufi A. ShIMncrte

Conabrtoecr

ChrbHoe L. Saabelcllo

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHTRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC A HOVSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9474 1.60I>^-334S Ext 9474

Fm: <03-271-4230 TOD Acccm: l-WO-735-2964 www.dhlu.Dh.gov

February 17, 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract
with The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. (VC#1544eo - BOOl), Laconia, NH to continue
providir>g a Permanent Housing Program to individuals experiencing homelessness.through the
Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a renewal option by increasing the price
limitation by $43,489 from $42,250 to $85,739 and by extending the completion date frorn January
31, 2021 to January 31,2022 effective retroactive to February 1.2021 upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on January 22. 2020, item
#13 and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on May 6. 2020, item #41.

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items
within the price limltatron and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUfUIAN
SVC, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD .

$16,305 $0 $18,305

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svcs

TBD
$23,945 $18,121 $42,065

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
.  TBD .

$0 $25,368 $25,368

.  , ,

Total $42,260 $43,489 $86,739

The Deporlmenlof Health and //union Servtcei' Miuion ie to Join eommunitiea and familiee
in providing oppertunilies [or citixene to achieve health and independence.
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Hi$ excellency. Govemof Chhetophef T. Sununu
and the Honorebfe Council

Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive t)ecause the Department did not receive the award
determination for additional funding from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) in enough time to process the request for renewal prior to the current contract
expiration date.

This request is Sole Source because federal regulations require the Department to
specify each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal
application process, prior to the grant award being issued.

Annually, HUD oversees a Continuum of Care Program competitive application process.
As part of this process, the Department is required to provide HUD with each polerrtial vendor,
and HUD evaluates vendor applications. Based on that evaluation process. HUD directs the
Department to provide grant awards in specific amounts to vendors.

The purpose of this request is to continue delivery of a Permanent Housing Program that
provides permanent housing and supportive services, as well as associated administrative
services, to individuals facing homelessness. Services provided increase the ability of
participants to live more Independently.

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center will provide permanent housing and supportive
services to seven (7) individuals who are experiencing homelessness or chronic homelessness
at any given time, from February 1, 2021 through January 31. 2022.

The Department ensures contract compliance and vendor by ensuring:

• Annual compliance reviews are performed and include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

•  Statistical reports are submitted by the vendor on a semi-annual basis which include
various demographic information and income and expense reports, including match
dollars.

Maintenance of timely and accurate data entry In the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and
activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these contracts.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Subsection 2.1. of the original contract, the parties have the
option to extend the agreement for up to one (1) additional year, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council
approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew for the one (1) available year.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request. Permanent Housing and
supportive services for homeless Individuals may not be available in their communities, and there
may be an increase in demand for services placed upon the region's local welfare authorities.
Lack of services may also cause individuals to become homeless.

Area served: Laconia

Source of Funds: CFDA# 14.667, FAIN# NH0002L1T002012

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

I nri A QhiKinAHA vLori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care,- Summer Street Permanent Housing contract Is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on January 22, 2020 (Item #13). as amended on May 6, 2020 (Item #41). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services. based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2. Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the,parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

January 31, 2022

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$85,739

3. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 3, Project Costs: Payment
Schedule: Review by the State, Subsection 3.4 Payment of Project Costs. Paragraph 3.4.1, to
read:

3.4.1 The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items as specified in Exhibit B-2, Budget - Amendment #2 and as defined
by HUD under the provisions of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations,
subject to the availability of sufficient funds.

4. Modify Exhibit B-1 Budget - Amendment #1 by replacing In its entirety with Exhibit B-1 Budget
(2020/2021) - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Add Exhibit B-2, Budget (2022) - Amendment #2 which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

r—05
■

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-12-A02 Page 1 of 3 Dale
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be retroactively effective to February 1. 2021 upon the date
of Govemor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/25/2021

Date

—OeeuSignad by:

Naml^^'^^^''^ Santaniello
Title: Director

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

2/19/2021

Date

Doci/SlofVM by:

I Auryurti Ai. friJjiAyl
Pri tchard

Title: ceo

The Lakes Region Menial Health Center, Inc. Amendment M2

SS-2020-8HS-04-PERMA-12.A02 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Oo«uSwMd by:

2/26/2021

Date Narnef^ff^'J^e pinos
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. Amendment U2

SS-202a-BHS-04-PERMA-12-A02 Page 3 of 3
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DjyiSION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH OiJOl
603-271-9474 1-WW52.3345 E*t 9474

Fa*: 603-271-4130 TOD Acc«»: l-SOO-735-2964 www.dbhi.nh.|ov

March 25. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House .
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing Sole Source contract with The Lakes Region Mental
Health Center, Inc. (VC#154480 - B001). Laconia. NH for to provide a Permanent Housing
Program to individuals experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Care
Program, by increasing the price limitation by $1,202 from $41,048 to $42,250 with no change to
the contract completion date of January 31, 2021 effective upon Governor and Council approval.
The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on January 22. 2020, item #13.
100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available' in the following account for Slate Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVC, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
42305808 $17,103 $1,202 $18,305

2021 102-500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
42305808 $23,945 $0 $23,945

Total $41,048 $1,202 $42,250

EXPLANATION

Annually, the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) oversees a
Continuum of Care Program competitive application process. As part of this process, the
Department is required to provide HUD with each potential vendor, and HUD evaluates vendor
applications. Based on that evaluation process. HUD directs the Department to provide grant
awards and the specific amounts to vendors. As previously stated, the original contract was
approved by Governor and Council on January 22, 2020, Item #13.
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h^s ExceDency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorebte Cmmcil

Pago 2 of 2

The purpose of this request Is to provide additional funds, rrtade available by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development, for the continued delivery of a Permanent
Housing Program that provides permanent housing and supportive sen/ices, as well as
associated administrative services, to individuals facing homelessness to increase the ability of
participants to live more independently.

The vendor provides permanent housing and supportive services targeted to senre a
minimum of seven (7) individuals who are experiencing homelessness, at any given time, from
February 1. 2020 through January 31. 2021.

The Department ensures contract compliance and vendor performance in the following
ways:

(1) Annual compliance reviews are performed and include the collection of data relating
to compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

(2) Statistical reports are submitted by the vendor on a semi-annual basis which include
various demographic Information and income and expense reports, including match
dollars.

(3) The vendor is required to maintain timely and accurate data entry in the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, which is me primary reporting
tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs fund^ through these
contracts.

As referenced in Exhibit C-l, Subsection 2.1. of the original contract, the parties have the
option to extend the agreement for up to one (1) additional year, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council
approval. The Department is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request. Permanent Housing and
supportive services for homeless individuals may not be available in their communities, and there
may be an increase in demand for services placed upon the region's local welfare authorities.
Lack of services may also cause individuals to become homeless.

Area served: Laconia

Source of Funds: CFDA# 14.667/ FAIN# NH0002L1T001810

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

Tht Deportment o(Health onrf Human Servictt'MiKian i j to join conimnnilies and fomilie$
in providing opporlunitiee for citizens to ochieit health and independence.
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New HampshlPD Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Summer Street Permanent Housing

State of New Hampahire

Department of HeaKh and Human Services
Amendment to the Continuum of Care. Summer Street Permanent Housing

TWe 1" Amendment to the Continuum of Cam, Summer Street Permanent Houaing oontred (herea^afte
refarred to as •Amendment #1") to by and between the State of New HampaWrB, Departnynt tf Heal»and Human SeivfoDs (herelnater referred to as the "StateC Of •DepartmcnT) and The Lak» Re^m MenW
Health Center, Inc.. (herebtafter referred to aa *1he Contractor*), o nonproitt ̂sflth a plaoe of ̂inesa at 40
Daaoon Street Eaat, L^oonia, NH. 03246.

WttEREAS, pufBuant to an agreement (the "ContrBCtO approved by the Oovemor end Executive Cowwfi
on January 22,2020, (Item #13), the Contractor agreed to perform certain eervtces baeed upon the termsend eendMons apedfled In the Contract and h conslderelbn of oeitab eums specified; end

WHB^EAS. pursuant to Form P-37, Oer>era) Prcwtslons, Paragraph 18, and ExhSrlt C-1, Paragraph 2.1..the Cordract may be amended upon wrtlten agreement of the parties and approyaJ from the Governor and
Executive Coundl; ana

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the terra of the egreement. Increase the pdoe ttrnftatlor*, or modify
(he scope of services to support oontlruied dellvefy of tirese eervloes; and
NOW THEREFORE, In oofrsWeratlon of the floragoing end the mutual ooverrants and coftdlllons cofrtained
In the Contract arvl set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as fbllowa:

1. Form P-37. General Provblons, Block 1.8, Price Umrtatton, to reed:
$42,260.

2. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Prooodert to Payment, Section l-PermanenlHouslno Program
■  Funding, SubeocBon 12.. to road:

1.2. Thb/^reement Is funded wflh federal funds made avaBabie under tf» Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA), es fathms:

1.2.1. Federal Funds: 100%-

122. Program Name: Contimium of Care Program

122. AisardDaio: 01/2S/2019

1.2.4. Awarding Agency: US Department of Housing end Urtran Dowotopmom
1.22. CFDA# 14267

122. FAIN#: NH0002L1TOqjJH<l ^/as/xo
3 EkWbll B, Methods and Conations Precedent to Payment Section 3. Projed Costs: Paymerrt

Schedule. Rovtow by the State. Subsection 3.4 Payment of Proiecl Costs, Paregraph 3.4.1, to
read:

341 The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimburaementbasb for actuat eligible
eoerrdituras Incurred in (he fidfOment of this agreement and ahan be In aooordance
wfth the epproved Drre Kems es specified in ErdM B-1 Budget — Ameodmsntdl, end
es defined by HUD under the prortslortt of PubOc Law 102-560 and other applicable
regulallana, eubiect to the evaQablQbr of eufRcfent funds.

4. MorfliyExWlift B-1 Budget by roptedr^ in its errtiretyMth Exhibit B-1 Buc^-Amendmerrt#!,
which Is ettacM hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

/ •

TbeLatoRogkmMontBlHBdftCortw.lnc. Mnmdtrmiai Ahjll
SSd020«KS4WS'ERM^>ia401 Page 1^3 ^ I'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Summer Street Permanent Housing

AD terms ar>d conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain In fuU force and
effect This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Coundl approval.

IN WITfMESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written betow.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

rull
nName:

TMte: I
fU

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center. Inc.

Naibe: ^*^0^Date
Tltfe:

Acknovrtodgement of Contractor'a signature:

.-yiiift nf M H- . Countv of I on 2-^. 202,0. before the
undersigned offkaf. personally appeared the person Identified directly above, or satlsfoctorily proven to
be the person wtwse name Is signed 8t)0ve, arwi acknowledgod that a/he exeorted this document In the
capacity Indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

CLUJKt

Name and Title of Notary or Justteo of the Peace

My Commission Expires: DfltoLfcLOACSDlX
Notary PubPo - New HampsMm

My Commission Diplres Marah 72,7022

/

Tho Lakes Reflloo Mental Health Center, ttc. Amendment #1
SS-Z02(VBHS-04-PERMA-12-A01 POQO 2 Of 3
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New Hampshire Oepartmont of Health and H^man Services
Continuum of Care, Summer Street Permanent Housing

The pfecedlf>g Amendment, having been mvleeed by this office. Is approved ea to torn, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date /fSmel
fUr

I hereby certify that tho loregolng Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Coundl of
the Slate of Now Harhpohlre at the Moating on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Neme:
Title:

The LcXee Region Me/tid HesUh C*nt«. he. Amondmnntei

SS-20»^HS-04-PERMA-12'A01 Poo»3ol3
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

.  J29 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603.271-9474 |.<0MS2-3345 EiL 9474

Fii:603.27 M230 TOD Accto: 1.800-73S.2964 www.dhh«.nb.|ov

January 7, 2020

/3 V

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Surwinu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Dh/ision of
Stability to enter into a sole source agreement with The Lakes Region Menial
eea«^ Stre^^^^ Laconla. NH 03246 (vendor #154480 - B001). to provide a Permanent Housing

homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Care Program -n

approval, whichever is later, through January 31. 2021. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are anticipated to-be available in the foHowing account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and
2021 with authority to adiust'budget line Items within the price iimitation and adju^ encumbranr^b^^etstalSyeare through the Budget Ofr.ce, it rreeded and justified. Funding 'or thi^equest,
contingent upon the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development funds, which the Department
anticipates receiving Imminently.

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBO $17,103

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $23,945

Total
$41,048

explanation

This reauest is sole source because federal regulations require the Departrnent to identify
vendors with whom the Department vritl contract during the annual federal C^tinuum of Care Pr^ram
mnM/Ai anotication orocess prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development reviews the applications and subsequently swards funding based on its critena.and tirning of grant terms do not align with state or federal f.sca years. The st^

on 'he moSh in which each granfs original federal agreement was issu^. Tt^.s
results in Continuum of Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests,
occurring in various months throughout the year.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Surtunu
and the Hohorable Council

Page 2 of 3

The purpose of this request is to provide a Permanent Housing Program that delivers permanent
housing and supportive services as well as associated adminlslrative services to individuals facing
homelessness to increase the ability of parlicipanls to live more independently.

The vendor will provide permanent housing and supportive services targeted to serve a minimum
of seven (7) indMduals who are experiencing homelessness. at any given time, from February 1,2020
through January 31. 2021.

The attached agreement represents one (1) of thirty (30) total agreements, all of which have
renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year. The thirty (30) agreements are with ̂ ndr^ who
are located throughout the state to ensure statewide delivery of housing services through New
Hampshire's Continuum of Care Program.

The U S Department of Housing and Urtwn Development established the Continuum of Care
concept to support communities in their efforts to address the problems of housing i^bility and
homelessness In a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves
three main purposes;

(1) A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

(2) A process to engage broad-based, community-wide Invotvemenl in addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis.

(3) An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housirig
ar»d Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for Individuals
arvJ families who face homelessness.

The Department ensures contract compliance and vendor performance in the following ways:

(1) Annual compliance reviews are performed and Include the collection of data relating lo
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

(2) Statistical reports are submitted by the vendor on a semi-annual basis which indude various
demographic information and income and expense reports, including match dollars.

(3) The vendor is required to maintain timely and accurate data entry in the New Hampshire
Homeless Management Information Syslem, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes
and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these contracts.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the parties have the option to exterxJ contract,
services for up to one (1) additional year, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Should Ihe Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request. Permanent Housing ar>d
supportive services for homeless Individuals may not be available in their communiiles. and there may
be an Increase in demand for services placed upon the region's local welfare authorities. Lack of services
may also cause individuals to become homeless. ^

Area served: Statewide

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Office of Community Planning and Development. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267. FAIN # TBD.
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His Excelleacy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

In the event that the Federal funds-become no longer available. General funds wit! not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfutty submitted.

terrin A. Rounds
Acting Commissioner

DepfirUittnl el HcolPt onrf Humna ScrUa*'Mission it te/ein tenmunilita e'»d fomilia
ifi p/widingepfjoruinilitt for dtkens to achieve health and independence.
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FORM r^UMBER P-37 (vcrjion 5WJ5)

Subject: rnniinuum of Off* Sutnmcf Sir«' Pemianen^ HgWltPfi fSS-^02^BHfi-04-PE&MAii2)
NQiicc- This 6Rr«ment and oil of iu otiachmcnu shill become public upon submission to Goi^or and

Executive Council for approval. Any mformallon that is private, conndential or proprietary must
be clearly identincd to the agency and agreed to if* writing prior to signing the contract.

"  ~ agreement
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFlCATIUrr.

I.I State Agency Name
NH Deportment of Health and Human Services

1.2 Slate Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Nome

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

t.4 Contractor Address

40 Beacon Street Easl
Laconia, NH 03246

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

(603) 524-1100

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-7927-
102-500731

'1.7 Completion Date

01/31/2021

1.8 Price Umiiaiion

S4I,04S

1.9 ConiraciingOfncerforSiaie Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

t.ll ConiraciorSignarure 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Chici-

On 5 . before the undersigned ofTiccr, personally appeared the person Identified in block l.l2,or saiisfocionly
nivvcn to bMhc person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and ocknowledeed that srttc executed this dKumcnl m the capacity

.•'indicated in bloci; 1.12.
■ 1.13.1 .Signa'tuiVofNolary Public or lusticc of the Peace

y'
DAWN H. LACROK

,2022

Ivri* Name and fiile of Noiaty or Justice of the Peace

1.14 .^laie Agency S^naturc

1.16 Approval by

By:

Date:

licpanmcnt ot Admini(£rii()n. Divbion of Funnel opplicabie)
Director. On;

1.15 Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory

u<^As f^f^)iinyM ^^chrf Of. (It'

17 Approval by the Anomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if opplieable)

.18 Appro

,Dy.

the Governor and Executive Council (ifopplieoble)

On:

Page I of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENTOFCONTRACTORySERVICESTO
BE PERFORMED. The Sate of New Hempshire, teitng
through the agency identified b block I.I ("Stale"),engages
contractor ideniified in block I.J f'Ccntraccor") to perfom),
and (he Contractor shall perform, ibe work or ule of goods, or
both, idenlined and more panicularty descnbed in (he atuched
EXHIBIT A which U incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. effective DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwiihiianding arty provisioo of this Agreement to the
cootTvy, and aubject to (he approval of the Governor end
Executive Counctl of the Sute of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement. ar>d all obligations of the panics
hereuoder, shall become efTcctive on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18. unless no such approval is re<{uired. in which case
(be Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreemeot is sigrted by the Sute Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 Ifthe Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to (be Effective Date ihail be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become efTeciive, the Sute shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limiuiion, any obligation to pay
(be Contraciof for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Cotnpleiion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Noiwithsumdtrtg any provision of this Agreemeni to the
contrary, all obligations of (be Sute hereunder, irtcluding,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereurtder. are
contingent upon the avaiiability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the Suu be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of cucb available appropriated
hinds. In the event ofa reduction oriermifution of
appropriated hinds, the Sute shall have the right to withhold
payment until such hinds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to tenninate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Coniraclor.notice of such tominal ton. The Sute
shall not be required to transfer funds horn any other account
to (he Account identified in block 1.6 in the event hinds In that
Account ere reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
payment.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more p^iculariy described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorpoiatod herein by reference.
3.2 The payment by the Sute of (he contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimburaemeni to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Conuacior in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Sute
shall have no tiabiliry to. the Contractor other than the contract
price.

3.3 The Sute reserves the right to ofbcr from any amounu
otherwise payable to the Coninctor under this Agreement

■ those liquidated amounts required or permined by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7< or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, end notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, la
rto event shall the loul of all payments autboriaed, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in biwk
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection wiili the performance of the Services, (he
Contractor shall comply with all sututes, laws, regulations,
and orders of fedeial. sute. county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil righU and equal opportunity
taws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communicaiioo
disabilities, including vision, httring and speech, can
communictte with, receive infornuiion from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with ell applicable copyright lews.
$.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate agairut employees or epplicanu for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex.
haodtcap. sexual orientation, or national origin end will take
afTirraativc action to prevent sucb discrimination.
6.3 if this Agreemeot is funded in any pan by monies of the
United Sutes, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisionsof Executive Order No. II246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulitiohsof the United Sutes Department of Labor (41
CF.R. Part 60). and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as (he Sute of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Cootractor further agrees to
permit the Sute or Uniied'Siates access to any of the
Contractor's boob, records and accounu for the purpose of
asceruining compliance with all tvles, regulations end orders,
and the coveruutU, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at iu own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warranu thai all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be property
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under ell applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise euihorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and ̂ 11 not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with wtrom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Servico to hire, any person who is a State
en^iloyee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Page 2 of 4
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Agreement. Thb provision shall survive tomlnalion of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting OfHcer spccifKd in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be (he Sttte's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
(he Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or mort of the.following sets or omisaions of the
Cootractor shall eoostituie an event of default hereunder
C'Evcniof Deftoli");
1.1.1 Wluie to perform the Services stlisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 Whire to subrrut any report required hereunder; and/w
8.1.3 hilure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this AgreemeoL
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following iciidns:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice speclfyina the Event
of Default and requiring It to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greata or lesser specificaiion of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and If the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective tNvo
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of (enninaiion;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written rrotice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this .
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Conlraclor during the
periodlfrom the date of such notice until cuch lime as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall tiever be paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 act off against any other obligations the Stale may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Sutc suffers by reason of any
Event ofDefauIi; and/or
8.2.4 freat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of Its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTLO-ITY/
PRESERVATION.
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data'* shall mean oil
inforroation and things developed or obtained during the
performarKe of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agrrcmenl, includiog, but not limited to, all studies, reporU.
files, fonnulac, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic rqjrescntations, computer programs, computer
printouU, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

. 9;2 All data and any property which haa bcerr received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to ibe State upon demand or upon
termination ofthis Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early tdmination of
(his Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, noi later than fifto(13) days afUr the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail ell Services performed, and (he cootraci price earned, to
and including the ̂ le of (ennmatioo. The form, subject
rrxatter, conical, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXNIBFT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agrvcment the Contraelor is in all
respects an indeperkdem contractor, and Is neither an agent nor
an employee of (he Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of hs
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICfiMENT/DELECATlON/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
ikOtice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
irkdcmnify and bold harmless the State, its officen and
employees, from arid against any and all losses suffered by the
Stale, its offieen and employees, and any end'all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against (he Stale, its ofTieers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omiuions of the
Contractor. Notwiihsiandiog the foregoing, nothing herein
eonlaioed shall be deemed to constitute a. waiver of the
sovereign immuniiyof the Stale, which tmmtmity is hereby
reserved to (be State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the terminatioo of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain end
maintaia in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
ofnot less than S 1,000,OOOper occurrence and S2,OCO,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 hereio, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved foruse in the
Slate of New Hampshire by the N.H. Departmeru of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

or4
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14.3 The Contnctof tlttli himub to the Cbnlrecting OfTtccr
ideotiried in block 1.9, or his or her successor, e cenificeteCs)
of insursnce for ell insurwKO required under this Agreement.
Contnclor shell eUo furnish to the Cootracting Officer
tdeniified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, ceitificeiefs) of
tnnmaee for all renewal(f) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later ihao.t^y <30) days prior to the expiration
date ofeachcftheiosurance policies. Ti^cenirtcate<$)of
insuraoce and any renewals thereof shall be ensched and ere
incotporated herein by reference. Each certifictte<s) of
tftsurwKe shall contain a clause requtriog the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9| or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By aigoing this agreement, the Concracior agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 'A
C'tyofktrs' Cdmpensotion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281>A, Contractor shall
maintaia, end require any subcontnctor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake purauani to this Agreement. Contractor shall
fiiroish the Contracting Officer idenlified in block 1.9, or hit
or her successor, proof of Workers* Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attKhed and are
tncorporatcd herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compentatiorr
premiums or for nny other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State ofNew Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection vriih the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OP BREACH. No failure by the Sute to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to ibat Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver ofthe right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisiorts hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by e party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in • United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an tnslrumeni in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the Sute of New Hompshire unless oo

such approval is required under the circumstances p\irsuant to
Sute law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with ibe
laws of the State of New Hampshire, end is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of (he parties ar^ their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is (he wording chosen by (be parlies to expre^ their mutual
intent, and tto rule of cortstruction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not imeod to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall ooi be
construed to confer aoy such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreemem
ere for reference pttrposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the imerpreuiion, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

21. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth In the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court ofcompeteni jurisdiction to
be contrary to any sute or federal law. the remaining
provisions of (his Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, coostirutes the entire Agreement and
undersUnding between the parties, and supersedes ell prior
Agreements and understandings relaiing hereto.
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Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Housing Program

1. PfovlslooB Applicable to All Services

1 1 The Contractor shell submit a detailed description of the language assislance services they will
provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services wHhin ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS
Bureau Of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301 .

1 2 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or fodorol leglslaOon or court orders n^y
have an Impact on the services described herein, the State, through the Bureau of Hou^ng
Supports (BHS), has the r^ht to modify service prioriUes and expenditure requirements under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has Idenlified the Contractor as a
subreciptenl In accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality, procedures established under 24 CFR 578.103(b). US
Department of Housing and Urban Developmenl (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector
General, and the Comptroller General of the United Stales, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records
of the Contractor that are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in orter to make
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. Those rights of access are not limited to. the
required retention period, but last as long as the records are retained.

1 5 The Contractor shall adhere to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws, and comply
with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detailM
In the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application approved by HUD.

1 6 The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR 576 and other written, appropriate HUD policies and directives.

1.7. The Contractor shall ensure all programs are licensed to provide client level data irito the N^
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH
HMIS policy, Including specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and
time required for data entry. Contractor shall comply with Exhibit I. Health Insurance Portablhty
and Accountability Ad Business Associate Agreement and Exhibit K. DHHS Security
Requirements, which are attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

1 8 The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer aD questions related to this contract frorn
representatives of the Stale or Federal agencies who may conduct a penodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1 9 The Contractor shatl support the primary goal of this program, which Is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless Individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

2. pcooeofWork

2 1 The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System lor all projects funded by the
Program! Emergency Solutions Grants Program, and Housing Opportunilies for Persons with
AIDS Program, in accordance with CoC Interim rule, 24 CFR 578. '-vj^
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2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Houslrtg program that is largeted to serve seven (7)
individuals wt>o are experiencing homelessness or chronic homelessness, and which Includes,
but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Utilizing the Housing First model. en8urir>g:

2.2.1.1. Barriers to entering housing are not Imposed beyor^ those required by
regulation or statute; and

2.2.1.2. Participation will only terminate for the most severe reasons, once available
options have been exhausted to hetp a participant maintain housing; and

2.2.2. Developing of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant at
intake and. at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being a93lstar>ce to the participant in obtaming
the skills nece^ary to live In the community Irtdepandently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish end maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 576 and shall establish and maintain
sufficient records to ertable HUO end BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance,
Including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation
related to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable
evidence of homeless status In eccordance wlth'24 CFR 576.500(b);

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status. The Contractor shall maintain

records that establish "at risk of homelessr^ss* status of each individual or

family who receives CoC homelessness pre^ntlon assistance, as identified in
24 CFR 576.500(c); and

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall
maintain documentation of each program participant who moved to a different
CoC due to Imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violenca, sexual
assault, or stalking, as defined In 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall
retain documentation that includes, but Is not limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original Incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, only if the . original violence is not already
documented In the program participant's case file. This may be
written observation of the housing or servica provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim servica provider, social worlter. legal
assistance provider, pastoral .counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the victim has sought assistance;
medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement records;
or written certification by the program participant to whom the
violenca occurred or by the head of household: and

2.3.1.3.2 The reasor^ble belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence,
dating violence, or sexual assault or stalking, which would Include
threats from a third-party, such as a friend or family member of the
perpetrator of the violence. This may be written observation by the
housing or service provider a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal, assistance provider,

Tht Ltk*s HUWi C«nt«r. Inc. EiNMA Connctaf MiUtt
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pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from
whom the victim has sought assistance; current restraining order;
recent court order or other court records; law enforcement report or
records; communication records from the perpetrator of (he violence
or famBy members or frier^ds of the perpetrator of the violence,
Including emails, voicemails, text messages, and social media posts;
or a written certification by the program participant to whom the
violence occurred or d^e head of household-

2.3.1.4. Rfloorda of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing
assistance where rent or en occupancy charge is paid by the program
participant, the Contractor shall keep.the following documentation of annual
Income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the
Contractor;

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents, which may Include the most recent wage
statement, unemployment compensation statement, public benefits
statement, and bank statements for the assets held by the program
participant end Income received before the date of the evaluation; and

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, e written
statement by a relevant third party, which may include an employer
or a government benefits administrator, or the written certificatiGn by
the Contractor's Intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the Income the program participant received over the most
recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are
unobtainable, the written certification by the prr^rarn participant of
the amount of income that the program participant Is reasorwbly
expected to receive over the three (3) month period foltowmg the
evaluation.

2.3.1.6. Program Partjcioant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status
or at-risk-of-homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor shall keep
records for each program participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant,
including, evidence (hat the Contractor, conducted an annual
assessment of servioes for those program participants that remain in
the program for more than a year and adjusted the service package
accordingty. end including case management services as provided in
24CFR57B.37(aX1M"KF);and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance
requirement in 24 CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor shall retain documentation of compliance
with the bousing standards In 24 CFR 578.75(b). including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor shali document the types of supportive
services provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on
those sen/Ices. The Contractor shall keep documentalion that the records were

Cenveety wttiu
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reviewed at least annually and that the service package offered to program
participants was adjusted as necessary.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records thai document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Oroanlzational conflict-of-interest requtrements In 24 CFR 576.95(c);

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(6); arvJ

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements In 24 CFR 576.95(d). i

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, Implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest
policy that complieo with the requirements in 24 CFR 576.95. induding records supporting any
exceptions to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.0. The Contractor shall comply and^rotaln documentalton of compliarwo with:
2.6.1. The Homeless Parllcipatton requirements In accordance with 24 CFR 576.75(9);

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements In accordance with 24 CFR 576.87(b):

2.6.3. Affirmatively Furtherino Fair Houstno bv maintaining copies of an marketing, outreach,
and other materiats used jg inform eligible persons of the program In accordance with 24
CFR 576.93(0);

2.6.4. Other Federal Reouirements In 24 CFR 578.99. as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Soedfied bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified
by HUD; ar>d

2.6.6. Procufement Recuifemenis In 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and ImplemenI written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected Identifying information of any individual or family who
applies for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and
conDdential;

2:7.2. The address or tocation of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care
funds are not to be made public, except vrith written authorization of the person
responsible for the operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not bo made public,
except as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and
consistent vrith State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of conftdantiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies.made
by pilcrofilminq. photocopying, or other similar methods, pertelnlng to Continuum of Care funds
are retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Dale and receipt of final payment
by^lhe Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained (or a period In excess
of the five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Program Reporting ReoulromentB

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report fAPRI: Within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the
Project Activities, showing In particular how the Contractor Is carrying out (tm wject In

SiNWA Conwctofh«ib,
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the manner proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year
NOFA. The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and submitted to
the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3 ̂ 2. Other Reports as requested by the Stale in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1 The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to atterxl aD meetings or trainings r^uMlod
by BHS including training in data security and confidentialily. according to state end federal
laws. To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings
frve (5) working days In advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall Infomn BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days cf the change.
5. Perfofmance Measures

5.1 The Contractor shaO adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth In the applicable HUD Project
Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable
HUD regulations Including, but rK)t limited, to the following;

5.1.1.1. httDs:/^AVw■hudexchariae info/Dfoorams/coc/sv3tem-performa^ce-
rpeasures/tfouidance:

5.1.1.2. 24 CFR 578: Continuum of Care Program: and
5.1.1.3. Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in Section
3., Program Reporting Requirements, Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS. or deslgnee. may observe perfomiance. activities and
docurhents under this Agreement.

6. pellverables
6 1 The Contractor shall Imptement and participate In the Coordinated Entry Systern, as detail^ In

Section 2 Scope of Work. Subsection 2.1., above, in accordance with the CoC Program Interim
rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a permanent housing program as outlined In Section 2 Scope of
Work, Subsection 2.2., above, arxj other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate end timely reporting as detailed in Section 3.. Program
Reporting Requirements, above.

6.4. The Contractor shall be subject to all performance measures as oudmed in Section 5,
Performance Measures. alx>ve.

TMUkwS^^MertilHwllhCtwitf.lnc. e*«MA ConcKtof InWfh



DocuSign Envelope ID; A0FE5EFF-46C3-4150-A618-5CF92A5D1C32

Now Hampshire Dopartmanl of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Summer Street Permanent Housing

Exhibit B

|ylPTHQP AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Housing Prooram Fundlrvo

1.1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1,8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

1.2. This Agreement is funded with federal funds made available under the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFOA), as follows:

1.2.1. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.2. CfOAU: 14.267

1.2.3. FAIN#; TBO

1.3. The Conlracior shall provide the services In Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compllar^ with
funding reguiremenls. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the
Contractor's current end/or future funding.

2. Financial Reppitg

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Flf^ar>dal Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordar>ce with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the Audited FInanciel Report within thirty (30) dajre of the
completion of said report to the State at the followlr>g address:
NH OHHS
Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301

2.2. Conformance with 2 CFR part 200: The Contractor shall use grant funds only, In accordance
with procedures, requirements, ar>d principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

2 3. If the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall
submit one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines
set forth by the Comptroller General of the United States in "Standards for Audit of
Governmental Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions." within ninety (90) days
after contract completion, date.

3. Project Costa: Payment Schedule: Review bvthe State

3 1 Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" means all expenses
directly or indirectly Incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Project Activities,
as determined by the State to be eligible and allowabte for payment in accordance with
Put)lic Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as
revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the
State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3 2 Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible^ costs listed In 24 CFR 578.39
through 578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program
components: permanent housing; transitional housing; suppwtiva Mrvices only; HMIS; and.
In some cases, homeless prevention. Adminrstrative costs are eligible for all oomponents.
An components are subject to the restrictions on combif\ir>g funds for certain eligible
activities In a single project found in 24 CFR 576.87(c).
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3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sutficienl matching funds, as required by HUD
regulations and policies described In 24 CFR 570.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements shall be documented with each payment request.
3.3.3. The Contractor shall match all grant funds except for leasing funds, with no less

than twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources.
3 3.4. The ConUactof shall utilize cash match for the cost of activities that are eligible

under subpart 0 of 24 CFR 578. The Contractor shell:

3.3.4.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy
the match requirement in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.4.2. Ensure records Indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted.

3.3.4.3. Ensure records Indude methodologies that specify how the values of third
party In-klnd contributions were derived.

3.3.4.4. Ensure records Include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. payment of Project Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payrnent on a cost reimbursement basis for actual,
eligible expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be In
accordance with the approved line Items as specifred in Exhibit B-1. Budget, and as
defined by HUD under the provlsloos of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable
regulations, subject to the availability of sufficient funds. •

3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as slated in Section 4. Expense Eligibility, below. The Contractor
must have written approval from the Slate prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to
Housing Act (HEARTH Act). Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). m
an amount arvJ time period not to exceed as specified in form P-37. General
Provisions.

3.4.4. of Payments:

3.4.4.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final
reimbursement request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the
fifteenth (15th) day of each month, for the previous month, and
accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for the amount of each
requested disbursement along with a payment request form and any other
documentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.4.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of
receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice
and if sufficient funds are available.
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3.4.4.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial infonnatlon if requested by the Slate to verify expenses.

3.4.4.4. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed In Paragraph 2.1.2.,
above., all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to: hQusinQsuDOortslnvoices@dhhs.nh.QOv

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Cosis:

3.5.1. At any time, during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance F^eport, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the Slate may
review el) Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to data.

3.5.2. Upon euch review, the State shell disallow any items of expenses that are not
determined to be allowable or are determined to be In excess of actual
expenditures, and shall, by whiten noUce specifying the disallowed expenditures,
infonning the Contractor of any such disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse
to pay such costs. Any amounts av^rded to the Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement are subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Coniractor agrees that funding
under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non>
compliance with any Federal or Stale taw, rule or regulation applicable to the
services provided, or if the said services, products, required report submissions, as
detailed In Exhibits A and B, or NH>HMIS data entry requirements, have not been
salisfactortly comptated In accordance with terms and conditions of this Agreement.

4. Expense ElialbiHtv

4.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care Program funds specifi^ in this Exhibit 8 from the HUD Contlhuum of
Care Program, for contract services.

4.2: CoefaUnQ Expenses:

4.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

4.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing.

4.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (Including property and car).

4.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to resenre for replacement of m^'or systems of the
housing (provided thai the payments must be based on the useful life of
the system and expected replacement cost).

4.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than frfty (50) percent of the
units or erea is paid for with grant funds.

4.2.1.5. Utilities. Including electricity, gas and water.

4.2.1.5. Furniture and equipment.

4.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

4.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project.

4.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only
facilities.

T>W UkM M«fa«l HMDi IX. CkAVIO CfinbMX Mtab
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4.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining Brxl
repairing the housing are included in the lease.

4.3. fiuDoortlve Services

4 3 1 Eligible supportive services costs shall comply with alt HUD regulations In 24 CFR
576.53. and are available to individuate actively participating in the permanent
housing program.

4.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

4.3.2.1. Annual assessment Qf Sarvice Needs. The costs of the assessment
required by 576.53(8) (2).

4.3.2.2. Aastetance with movino costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are
eligible and include truck rental and hiring a moving company.

4.3.2.3. ryiflnaQement. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the deiiveryof Individualized services to meet the needs of the
program par1icipant(s) are eligible costs.

4 3 2 4 Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child ■ care, arxf
providing chiW-care vouchers, for children from families experiencing
homelessriess, including providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive
and coordinated developmental activities are eligible.

4.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of Improving knowtedge and basic
educational skills ere eligible.

4 3 26 Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and
operating employment assistance and job training programs are eligible,
including classroom, online and/or computer Instruction, on-lhe-job
Instruction, services that assist individuals in securing employment,
acquiring learning skills, and/or Increasing earning potential. The cost of
providing reasonable stipends to program participants In employment
assistance and job training programs is also an eligible cost.

4.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is
eligible.

4.3.2.8. Housirw search and counselinQ services. Costs of assistir>g eligible
program participants to locale, oblaln. and retain suitable housing are
eligible.

4.3.2.9. Leoal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys
end by person(8) under the supervsion of licensed attorneys, for advice
and representation In matters that Interfere with homeless individual or
family's ability to obtain and retain housing.

4.3.2.10. t ifft Skills trainlno. The costs of teaching critical life managemenl skills
thai may never have" been learned or have been lost durirtg course of
physical or mental illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and
homelessness are eligible. These services must be necessary to assist
the program participant to function independently in the community.
Component Bfe skills training are budgeting of resources end money
management, household managemenl, confllcl management, shopping
for food end other needed items, nutrition, the use of public transportation,
and parent training.
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4.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment
of mental health conditions that are provided by licensed professlorxals.
Component services, are crisis interventions: counseling; individual,
famBy, or group therapy sessions; the prescription of psycholropic
medications or explanations about the use and management of
medications; and ootnblnations of therapeutic approaches to address
multiple problems.

4 3 2,12. Qutofltient hftfllih services. Eligible costs are ttw direct outpatteni
treatment of medical conditions when provided by licensed medical
professionals.

■  4.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the
purpose of providing Immediate-support and intervention, es well , as
Identifying potential program participants, are eligible.

4.3.2.14. Subslance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participanl
intake end assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual
counseling, and drug testing are eligible. Inpallent detoxification end other
Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment are ineligible.

4.3.2.15. Transportation Services, as described In 24CFR 578(6) (15).

4.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility
deposits. Utility deposits must be one-time, paid directly to utility
companies.

4.3.2.17. Direct ofovisiQn of services. If the service described In 24 CFR 578.63(e)
(1)-(16) of this section is being directly delivered by the recipient or
subreclplenl. eligible cosis for those services are described In 24 CFR
578(e) (17).

4.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible under this section 4.3.2
Is not an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of
Care program funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professlorwl
licensure or certifications needed to provide supportive services are not
eligible costs.

4.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for
program participants are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons
living vrith HIV/AIDS: and victims of domestic violence, dating violence,
sexual assault, or stalking.

4.4. Rental Assistance

4.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless irxlividuals and families.
4.4.2. Rental essistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already

receiving rental assistance, or living In a housing unit receiving rental assistance or
operating assistance through other federal, Slate, or local sources.

4.4.3. Rental assistance shell be administered In accordance wilh the policies and
procedures established by the Continuum as set forth In 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24
CFR 578.51. and may be:

4.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

4.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

'/i/zg
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4.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

4.4.4. Grant furxJs may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months
of rent.

4.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in
addition to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

4.4.6. Rental assistance will only bo provided for a unit If the rent Is reasortable, as
detennined by the Contractor, In relation to rents being charged for comparable
unassisted units, taking Into account the location, size. type, quality, amenities,
facilities, end management and maintenance of ea^ unit.

4.4.7. The Contractor may use grant fur«ls in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to
pay for eny demege to housing due to the action of a progrem participent. Efir
1 easino funds only: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the
landlord from security deposits.

4 4 8 Houslr>g shall be in compliance with all State and local housing codes. licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Polsonif>g Prevention Ad. and any other
requirements of the iurisdictlon In which the housing Is located regarding the
condition of the slojciure and operation of the housing or services.

4.4.9. The Contractor shell provide or*e of the followtng types of rental assistance: Tenant-
based. Projed-based. or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described by HUD In
24 CFR 578.51.

4.4.9.1. Jsnant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program
participants choose housing of an appropriate size In which to reside.
When necessary to facilitate the coordination of supportive services,
recipients and subrectplenls may require program participants to live In a
specific area for their entire -period of participation, or in a specific
strudure for the first year and In a specific area (or the remainder of their
period of participation. Short and medium term rental assistance provided
under the Ra(^ Re-Housing program component must be tenant based
rental assistance.

4 4 9 2, Sponsor-based rental assistance Is provided through contracts batmen
the recipient ar>d sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private,
nonprofit organiiatlon. or a community mental health agency established
as a public nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside In
housing owned or leased by the sponsor.

4 4 9 3 p|tiled-base^ rHntal assistance Is provided through a contract with the
owner of an existing strudure. where the owner agrees to leaw the
subsidized units to program particlpanls. Program participants will not
retain rental assistance if they move.

4,4.9.4. por orojed-based. sponsor-base^i or tenant-based rental esslstance.
program participants must enter Into a lease agreement for a term of el
least one year, which is terminable for cause. The leases rnust be
automatically renewable upon expiration for terms that are a minimum of
one month long, except on prior notice by either party.

4.5. Administrative Costs:

4.5.1. Eligible administrative costs Include:

im.
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4.5.1. V. The Contfsctor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment
of project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of
Continuum of Care actMlles. TNs does not indude staff and overhead
costs directly related lo'canrylng cut activities eligible under 24 CFR
576.43 through 578.57. because those costs ere eligible as part of those
activities.

4.5.1.2. General managenoont, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall
program management, coordination, moniloring and evaluation. Thew
costs indude. but are not limited to. necessary expenditures for the
following:

4.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, end related costs of the Contractor's staff, or other
staff engaged In program admlnlslraUon.

4.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the Contractor may
Include the entire salary, wages, and related costs allocable
to the program of each person whoso primary
responsibilities with regard to the program involve program
adminlstrBtion assignments, or the pro rata share of the
salary, wages, and related costs of each person whose job
includes any program administration assignments. The
Contractor may only use one of these methods for each
fiscal year grant, Program administration assignments
include the foltowing:

4.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and
amendments to those budgets and schedules;

4.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for ensuring compliance with
program requirements;

4.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing Interagency agreements and
agreements with subrecipients and Contractors to
carry out program activities;

4.5.1.2.1.1.4. Moniloring program activitlos for progress erxJ
compliance with program requirements;

4.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reporls and other documents related to
the program for submission to HUD;

4.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and rhonltoring
findings;

4.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents diroclly
related to the program submission to HUD;

4.5.1.2.1.1.6. Evaluating program results against staled
objectives;

4.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary
responsibilities with regard to Ihe program Indude
suc^ assignments as those described in sections
4.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 4.5.1.2.1.1.8. above;
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4.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel coats incurred for official.business in.carrying
cut the program;

4.5.1.2.1.1.11. Adminifitrativo sarvlcas performed under third party
contracts or agreements, including such services as
general legal services, accounting services, and
audit services;

4.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for
administration of the program, including such goods
end services as rental or purchase of equipment,
Insurance, utilities, office supplies, end rental erKl
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

4.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs
of providing training on Continuum of Care
requirements and attending HUO-Sponsored
Continuum of Care trainings; and

4.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying cut the
environmental review responsibilities under 24 CFR
578.31.

4.6. Leasing:

4.6.1. When the Contractor is leasing the strijdure. or por1k>ns thereof, grant funds may be
used to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or
portions thereof, to provide housing or supportive services.to homeless persons for
up to three (3) years. Leasing funds may not bo used to lease units or structures
ovmed by the contractor, Iheir parent organiration. any other related or9ani2atton{s).
or organizations that are members of a partnership, where the partnership owns the
structure, unless HUD authorized an exception for good cause.

4.6.2. Requirements:

4.6.2.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent (or at) or part of a
structure or structures, the rent paid must be reasonabto in relation to
rents being charged In the area for comparable space. In addition, the
rent paid may not exceed rents currently being charged by the same
owrter for comparable unassisted space.

4.6.2.2. [.easinQ individual units. When the grant funds are used to pay rent for
Individual housing units, the rent paid must reasonable In relation to rents
being charged for comparable units, taking Into account the location, size,
type, quality, amenities, faciililes. and management senrices. In additton.
the rents may not exceed rents currently being charged for comparable
units, and the rent paid may not exceed HUD-delormlned fair market
rents.

4.6.2.3. UHlHles. If electricity, gas. end water are included in the rent, these utilities
may be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by the
landlord, these utility costs are operating costs, except for supportive
service fecilitles. If the stnrcture Is being used as a supportive service
facility, then these utility costs are a supportive service cost.
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4.6.2.4. Security deposHs and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use
grant funds to pay security deposits. In an amount not to exceed 2 months
of actual rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided
to the landlord In addition to security deposit end payment of (he first
month's rent.

4.6.2.6. Occupancy aoreements and subteases. Occupancy agreements and
subleases are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

4.6.2.6. Calcujatlon of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent
from program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR
578.77.

/  *

4.6.2.7. Pfooram incorT>e. Occuparxry charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24
CFR 578.97.

4.6.2.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

4.6.2.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in
comparison to rents charged in the area for similar housing units.
Documentation of rent reasonableness must be kept on-file by the
Contractor.

4.6.2.10. The Dortton of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-determlned
fair market rents.

4.6.2.11. The Contractor shall pay ir>dividual larxdlords directly: furtds may rwt be
given directly to partidpanls to pay leasing costs.

4.6.2.12. ProDBftv damaoes may only t)6 paid from money paid to the landlord for
security deposits.

4.6.2.13. The Contractor cannot lease a buikjlna that It already owns to itself.

4.6.2.14. Housino must be In compBance with ell State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevonlion Act,
artd any other requirements, of the jurisdiction In which the housir>g is
located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the
housing or services.

4.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water).
However, (he amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specifted in HUD
regulations (24 CFR 576.77). Other senncas such as cable, air conditioning, telephone.
Internet access, cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

4.6. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this contract, or counted as
match, complete weakly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor FIrtanclal Management Svatem

■ 5.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures that ensure proper disbursement of, and accounting for. grant funds and any
required nonfedefal expenditures. TNs responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct
operations of the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall mainlatn a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR
part 200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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fiPPriAi PRQVISIQWS

Contractors Obiigatlons: The Contractor covertants and aoress that all funds received by (he Contractor
ur^der (he Contract shall be used ordy u payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and. In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal ar>d Stale Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the efigiblllty
of lr>dividu8ls such eligibility determinaticn shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulaUons, ordars. guidetinas, policies and procedures.

2. Tlnwr and Manr>er of Ootermtnatlon: Eligibility determiriatlons shall Im made on forms provided try
the Departrnent for that purpose and shaQ be made end remade at such times as are prescdbed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereurxlsr, \^ich file shall inctude eQ
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as (he
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations (hat the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings; The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants end agrees thai eD applicants for senrices shaP be pormittod to fUl out
an appUcaiion form and Ibal each applicar^ or re-applicant shall t>e informed of his/her right to afair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratultlea or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees (hat it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to trdluenco the performance of (he Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any subcontract or sub-agreement if It is .
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kirtd were offered or received by
any ofTidals. officers, employees or agents of the C^^tractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or Ineny
other document, contract or under^anding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments wfll be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of (he Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior (0 (he date on which (he individual applies for services or (excepi as otherwise provided by (he
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual Is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to (he contrary contained In the Contract, nothlrtg
herein contained shall be deemed to obtlgale or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Conuactors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonabla and r^ecessary to assure the quality of such aervice, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals or other third party
furxlers for such service. If at any time during the term of Ihis Contract or after receipt of (he FIrtal
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine thai the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received paynteni
In excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to Inengltrie individuals
or other third party funders, the Department rnay elect to;

7.1. Renegoliate the rates for payment hereutyjer, in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs;
Etfdbt) C - Sp«da) Provl9>on» Contrteiartnhlxh
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7.3. Demand fepayment of the exce&s payment by the Contractor In wftlch overu failure to make
such repayment ehall constitute on Event of Default hereuftdef. When the Contractor Is
permitlad to determine the eligibility of individuels for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse Iha Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who Is found by the Department to be Ineligibie for such aervtcesat
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records; In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents ar>d other data evWaocing and reflacting all costs
end other expenses irKurred by the Contractor In the performonce of the Contract, and ell
Income received or collected by the Contractor during the Conlr^ Period, said records to.be
mainlalncd In accordance with accounting procedures end practices which sufTelently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses.'and which ere acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, wllhoul limitation, all ledgers, books, records, erxj original evidence of costs auch as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for matertals. Invenlories. valuations of
In-kind contributions, labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or requked by the
Department.

8.2. Siatisiica! Records: SUtistlcaJ. enrollment, attendance or visit records for ea«i> reap«nt of
serytoas during the ConUact Period, which records shaD indude ell records of applicationand
ellgibflity (indudirtg ell forms required to determine eligibility for each such redpient). records
regerding the provision of services and all Invdces submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records; Where appropriate end as prewrlbed by the Department regulations, the
Ck>niraclor ahaU retain medical records on each patient/redplent of services.

g Audit; Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the dose of the
agency fiscal year. It b recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of Stales. Local Governments, and Non
Profit OrganiiaUons" and the provtslons of Standards for AudH of GcvernmenlaJ Orga/tliatlons.
Programs. Activities and Functions. Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAG standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. AudH and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
deslgnalod representatives shall have eccess to ell reports end records maintained pursuanlto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transalpts.

6 2 Audit LlabDilies: In addilioo to and not In any way in limitation of obiigatlortt of the Contract, It Is
undamtood and agreed by Iho Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liabia for any state
or federal audit exceptions end shall return to Ihe Department, ell payments made under the
Ccntrad to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an

■  exception.

10. Confldontlallty of Rocorda: All Information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
In conrraction wllh Ihe performance of the servlMS and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disdosed by the Contractor, provided however, thai pursuant to stale laws arxJ the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, dtedosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information In connection with l^lr offi^l duties and for purposes
directly connected to the edmlntstraiioh of the services and the Contract: and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department a the (^nl/actor's responslbiliiies with
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on written consent of the redpi^^L his
attorney or guardian. "

QViyii
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained In
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11 Roporu: Fiscal end Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at Ihefotlowtno
limes If requested by the Oepartment. n . ̂ ^ #
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports contaming a detailed deecnpli0f>0T

all costs and norveilowable expenses Incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
cont8lr>ing euch other Irtformalkm as shaH be deemed satisfactory by the Oepartment to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Firxartdal Reports shall l)e submitted on the forrn
deslgnaled by the Oepartment or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11 2 FIrwl Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days oftcr the ef>d of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Oepartment and shall
contain a summajy statement of progress toward goals and objectives slated In the Proposal
and other Information required by the Depsrtment.

12 Completion of Servlcoe; Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of unfit provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the price limJlalton
hereurxler. the Contract and afi the obllgalions of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract end/or
survive Ihe termination of the Contract) shall termlrwte. provided however, that if. upon review ofthe
Flr>al Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor m
costs hereunder the Oepartmerfi shall retain the right, at Its discreilon. to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits; All documents, noticas. press reloases. research reports Bnd other materials prepared
during Of resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall Indude thefoilowing

13.1. The preparation of tWs (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with ihe State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health end Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State-of New Hampshire end/or such other funding sources as were avaPaWe or
required, e.g.. the United States Oepartment of Health and Human Sorvces.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownorshlp: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and ell original materials
produced. Inctuding. but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or gukleltnes.
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15 Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any fadlltias
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all taws, orders and regulations of.federal,
stale, county and municipal aulhoriiies and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duly upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of Ihe services at such facOliy. II any governmental license or
permll shall be required for Ihe operation of the said fadlity or the performance of the said servl^s,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at an limes comply with the terms arw
conditions of each euch license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requtremenis. the •
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the faolities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Slate Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance vrflh local building end zoning codes, by-
lav/s and regulations.

16 Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal EmplO)jnent
Opportunity Ran (EEOP) to the (Dffice for CMl Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), o It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the redpient receives S25.000 or more end has 50 or

EintbU C - SpecU ProvtUons Conlractor (nlilab
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moro employees, U wfll maintain a aifrent EEOP on file and submit an EEOP CcrtiftcatJon Form to the
OCR, certifying that Its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with f^r than 60 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide en
EEOP Certificatton Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Norv
profit organlaailons, Indian tribes, end medica! and educatlonel InsilluOoos are exempt from the
EEOP requlromeni. but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms ere available at: http;/Avww.oip.usdoi/8bool/ocr/pdfa/cert.pdf.

17 Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nattonalorlgln
dtecrimlnalion Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe SUeets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the CMl
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors musi laHe reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
moenirtgful access to Its progrems.

18. Pilot Pfogrem for Enhsncemont of Contractor Empfoyoe Whlstloblowor Protections: The
foOowing shatl apply to all contracts that exceed the Slm^lfled Acquisition Threshold as defined Insa
CFR 2.1d1 (currently. S150.000)

Contractor Employee Whisti£Blower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
WMSTLEacOWER RiOHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees wcrtdng on this contract will be subject to the whlstlelrlowef rights
end remedies in the pilot program on Contractor emptoyee whbUeblower protecUons established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.608.

(b) The Contractor shall Inform its employees in wriling. In the predominant language of. the workforce,
of employee whlstleWower rights and p/oleclions under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described In section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contrector shall Insert the substance of this clause. Including this paregraph (c). In al)
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractora: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accoumablllly for the function(8). Prior to
subconUacUng. tha Contractor' shall evaluate the subconiractor'a ablliiy to perform the delegated
functtorKs). TWs Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activilies and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanction# if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. SubconUactors are subject to the same contreciual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contracior shall do the following:

19.1. ■ Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that spedfies activities andreportlng
■ rosponslbiimes. and how sarictlons/revocailon will be managed If the subconuactor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performarKe on an ongoing basis

EiWbH C - BpseW PrpvUtoM " Contractor iniUab
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19 4 Piovida to OHMS an annual achadule Identifying atl aubcontraclors. delegatad functlonsand
responaiblimes. and when the aubconlractor's poffofmance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at its discrelion, review and approve ell subcontraclB.

If the Contractor Idcntlfloa deWendes or areas for improvemen! are Identified, the Contrector shall
taHe corrective action.

20. Contract Doflnlttone;

20.1. COSTS; Shell mean those direct end Indirect Items of expertse determined by the Ocpartrnenlto be ellowablo and reimbursable In eccordenco with cost and accounting principles established
In eccordanco with state arxJ federal laws, regulations, rules and ord^.

20.2. DEPARTMEffT: NH Department Of Health and Human Services.

20 3 PROPOSAL; II applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on aform or forme required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Controclor In accordance with the terms and corxJIllons of the
Contract and setting forth IM total cosi end sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Cor^tract.

I

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor Is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder. ̂all
mean Ihet period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit 8 of the Contract.

20 5 FEDERALIST ATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulatiofw. rules, orders, end
policies, etc. are refem^ to In the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed (o meanalisuch laws. regulations, etc. as they may bo amended or revised from lime to lime. .

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under Ihis
Contract will rwt supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

oeiyti
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RgVlSlQNS TO STANDARD CONTRACT l-ANGUAGE

1. Revlalons to Form P-37, Canoral Provtelona

1.1. fiaction 4. Cooditionai Nature ol AQraameni. la replaced as foltows:

4. CQNDfTIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

NoMlhslandii>9 any provision of this Agraemeni to the contrary, all obligations of the Stale
hereunder. Including wfthout limitation, the continuance of payments. In vmoie or In part,
urxler tWs Agreement are contingent upon contlr^ued epproprtatton or avallablPty of funds,
indudlng any subsequent changes to the appropriation or ovailabllity of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or. othervrlse
modiTies the appropriation or avallabSily of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Senrlcos provided In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or In part. In no event shatl the
State be liable for any payments thereunder in excess of appropriated or avaOabfe funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or avaDaWe funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available. If ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. Tha Stale shall rwt be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account Into the Accountfs) kJentlfied in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any olher account In the event funds ere reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, cs amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the soie discretloo of
the Slate. 30 days after glvirtg the Contractor written notice that the Stale Is exercising Its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event ol earty termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the Stale a TrarwUion Plan for services under the
Agreement,', indudir^g but not llmUed lo. Identifying th© prosem and future r>eeds of dients
receiving services under the Agreemoni and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Conlrectof shall funy cooperate with the Stale and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transillon Plan Including, but not limited to. any Information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Ran to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under Ihe Agreemenl. includif>9 but not limited to dients receiving
services under the Agreement are transilioned to having services delivered by another
entity Induding contracted providers or the Stale, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transition Ran.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying dients and other affcclod individuals
about the transition. The Contrador shall indude the pressed communications In Its
Transillon Ran submitted to the Stale as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to one (1) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreemenl of the
parties end approval of the Governor and ExecuUve Coundl.

EOVbUC-l-R«v<slcin»/Etc«p0OA9(oSttntfw4Convoctl4ne^ieoo ConesoorlAldab
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CERTIFICATION REQARDINO DRUG-fREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTg

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of tne General Provisions agrees to
Sections 5l61-5ie0 of Iho Drug-Free WtirVplace Add 1988 [Pub. L lOtWM.
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). end further egrees to have the Contreclor's representative, as Idenlifled In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execoie the following Certification:

alternative I. FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIOUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Thio certfficotioo is required by the regulations Imptementlng Sections 515V5160 of ̂  Omg-Free
Wortiplace Act OI19B8 (Pub. L 1(X>^90. Title V. SubtitieD;4i U.S.C. 701 etseq.). J^a^ 31.
1989 regulaltons were amended and published as Part II of the May 25. IWO.Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certiricalion by grantees (and by Inference.
contractors), prior to eward. that they wfll maintain a drug-free workptece. Secti^017.63(Hc) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (end by inference, sub^rantees and su^ntradore) ®
may elect to make one certificalion to the Oepartment in each federal fiscal year in Deu of ^
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by Iha certification. The certificate setoul belw Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when ihe agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of paymer>ts. p*"
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarmenL Contractors using this form should
send it ta

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasaril StreeL
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1  The grantee certifies that It will or will continue lo provide a drug-free workplace by
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that Ihe unla^l manufacture, dislrloulion.

dispensing possession or use of a conlroDed substance is prohibited In the grantee s
w^place and specifying the actions Ihat wfil be taken against employees for violalion of such
prohibilion;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug obuse in the workplace; .
1 2 2 The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
V2!3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
y.i.A. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. kiaking It a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); ^ . ,
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) mat. as a condition of

employmeni under the grant. Ote ©mptoyee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the Statement; and ^

■ 1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violalion of a criminal drug
statute occurring In Ihe workplaco no later then five calendar days after such •
conviction;

1 5 Notifying the agency In vwiti'ng, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
eubparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such oonvidton
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, induding position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant acth^ the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

E*hibfc 6 - CdrtKtertlon r^Qiftfng Diug Ff»» V«ftdof liUtWi .
n.J/3lZO

CUOHMSlMWO ^ ^



DocuSign Envelope ID: A0FE5EFF-46C3-4150-A618-5CF92A5D1C32

New Hampshire Do^rtment of Heatth end Human Servlcos
Exhibit 0

has desipnatad a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identification number(8) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such en employee, up to and Including

termination, corxsisient with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to parlidpate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to melntain e drug-free workplece through
ImplementaUon of paragraphs l.l. 1.2.1.3,1.4.1.8, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert In the space provided below the slte(s) for the porlormance of work done In
connection with the spedrtc grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

vendor

Oate N£une;^<L>^A»'** *-*■
Tmo: C4^,g.^£H.lCUJht^
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identiflad in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply wllh the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 10M21. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Connor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of (he Genera) Provisions execute the foUowing Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE- CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate applicable program covered):
lemporary Assistartce to Nee^ FamiSes under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Tide IV-0
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Tide XX
*Medicatd Program under Tide XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Tide VI ' ,
•Child Care Oevelopment Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or emptoyee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection the awarding of any Federal contract, continualion, renewal, emendmenL or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (artd by specific mention
suthgrarttee or sub-contractor).

2. if any funds other (hain Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to Inftu6r>ce en officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contracL grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (arKl by specific mention sub-granlee or eut>-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form ILL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with its Instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included In the award
document for sub-awards at a!) tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that aO sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed wlien this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who falls to file the required
certification shall be subject to a ctvil penalty of not less than S10.000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Namerrhc. LA.e4.r Xue

hmi&Aid^hlxLdLAa/idL'A/
Dale Nw: M -

Title: Stt,tj.4jhv€

EiUifeti E - CorttflutSen Roswdhe Lobbytna Vandor
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CERTinCATiON REQARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compiy with the pfovtstons of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12S49 end 4$ CFR Part 76 regarding Oebermeni.
Susperaion. end Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the fotlowing
Certificaticrt:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION .
1. By signing and submllUng this proposal (conlraci). the prospectivo primofy participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inebHity of a person to provide the cortl/lcation required txtow wiD not necessarily result In denial
Of participation In thb covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective partidpant shall submit an
explanation of why H cannot provide the ceftlficalion. The cerdficadon or explanation will be
considefed in connection vnth the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. Hovrever. failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from partWpalion In
this transaction.

3. The cerdfication In this clause is e material representation of fact upon which reliance was plac^
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it Is later determined that the prospective
primary partidpant knowingly rendered on enoneous certification. In addition to other remediea
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transacticn for cause or default

4. The prospective primary partidpant shall provide Immediate written noUce to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (conlraci) Is submitted if at any tiiw the prospective primary partidpant teams
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms •covered transaction.' 'debarred.' 'suspended.' 'ineligible." lower tier covered
transaction.' 'partidpant' 'person.' 'primary covered transaction.' 'principal.' 'proposal.' and
'votuntarify excluded.* as used In this dause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage stations of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6 The prospective primary participant agrees by submltfirtg this proposal (contract) that should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or volunlarily exduded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7 The prospective primary partidpanl further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will Indude the
dause titled 'CertifKation Regarding Debarment Suspension. Ineligibinty and Voluntary Exduslon -
Lower Tier Covered Transectiorts." provided by DHHS. without rnodificallon. In all tower tier covered
transactions and In aP solldtations for lower tier covered transactipns.

8. A partldpsnt In a covered transaction may roty upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
tower tier covered transactton that It is not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or Invduntariiyexduded
from the covered transaction, unices It knows that the certification is erroneous., A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
partidpanl may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. rtothlng contained In the foregoing shaD be construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render In good faSh the certification required by this dause. The knowledge and

EjihWl F - CartlfiMtlon Reciftfne Debtnnem. SMpenslon Vtndof InSbli
And Other ReeponalbOSy Manor;*
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information of a partlcipani Is not retjulred to oxceed that wttich Is normally possessed by a prudent
peraon in the ordinary course of business dealings. ^

10. Except for transactions authohzed under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a partidpant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a tower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, Irieligibte, or vcluntariiy exduded frorh participation In this transaction, in
additton to other remedies availatrie to the Federal government. DKHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certiflea to the best ol its knowledge and belief, that it and its

prfndpals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineliglbte, or

voiunterUy excluded from covered imrtsacttons any Federal department or aperKy;
11.2. have not wilhin a three-year pertod preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commisston of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with cblalning, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public trsnsaction; viotation of Federal or State anUtiust
statutes or commisston of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsincation or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commisston of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certificBtion: and

11.4. have not vrltWn a throe-year period preceding this appltcatton/proposal had one or more public
transacttons (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
ccrtiftcotion. such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective tower tier participant as

defined In 4S CFR Pert 76, certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief that It and Its principals;
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or ,

voluntarily excfudcd from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanatioo to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective tower tier partidpant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It win
Include this dause entitled *Certificatton Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligiblllty, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' without modincation In an lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for tower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name-Tle iK^ ra-i
Ccr-*<*, JC.'UC.

f  ZjO
Oate Na#iienEft^^«.Ht.t M*
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CgRTIPICATlON OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAIHING TO
FEDERAL gWuniftrRtMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH«BASEO ORGANIZATIONS AND

W^tlSTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the Genefal Provisions agrees by sigrwture of the Contrartofs
representative as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Ver>dorv^n comply, erxJ wiU require any subgranteesor subcontractors to comply, with any appUcaWe
federal nondlscnminaUon requirements, which may Include:
- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Street# Act.of 1068 (42 U.S.C. Section 37e9d) which prohibits
redoients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, ellher In employment practices or m
the deSvory of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, relrgion. national ongin. and sex. The Act
requires certain reciplenls to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(0)) which adop^ by
reference the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act Recipients of federal hmding under this
statute ere prohibited from discriminating, either in employment pracUces or In the delivery of services or
l>encfit8, on the basb of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal .
Employmenl Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohiWls redptents of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origm-in any program or activity);
. the Rehebifitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits redptents of Fedwa) finandal
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In repard to employrT*enl and the delivery of
serelccs or benefits. In any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibite
discfimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities m employment. Stale and local
Qovemmenl services, public 'accommodations, commerdal facilities, and transportation;
- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683,1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Abo Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohteits dlscfiminalion on the
basis of age in programs or actlviiies receiving Federal financial assistance. It docs not mdude
employment di^mination;
- 28 C F R pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Granl Programs); 28
(U S Department of Justice Regulations - Noodlscriminalion; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures)- Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for failh-based and c^munily
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundarwntal principles and poUcy-making
criteria for partnerships with failh-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C F R. Dt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Oraanizations)' and WhisUeblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 end The Nabonal Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239. enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whisttebtower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowlnQ activlUes In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of tact upon which reliance Is pla^when the
doency awards the granl False certificatton or violation of the certificaUon shall be grounds for
suspension of ̂ yments. suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmeni

EihUIO
Vandor IrUfits
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, hatidnai origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, me recipient will forward a copy of the flndif>9 to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicdble contracting agency or d'rvlston within the Oepartnfiefil of Health and Human Seryicea. end
to me Oepeitment of Heaim af>d Human Services Office of me Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 13 of the Ger^erai Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Wenyfied in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute me following
certification:

I. By signing and submlRlr^g thb proposal (contrect) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:-r>e.

'JiM. Kanji: m.

I MrUMn B r«air«
yjwWUMlB mt

EihUtO
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, CERTIFICATION pEtSARDIMG ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Putriic Law 103-227, Part C - Envlrorimental Tobacco Smoke, also kno««n as the Pro-ChiWren Act of ̂ 99A
(Act), requires thai smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned Of leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or legularty for prevision of health, day care, education.
Of Obrary services to chiWren under the age of 10. If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, bontract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to cWtdren's services provided In private residences. facBilies funded solely by
fi/ledlcare or MedrcakJ funds, and portions of facililles used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment Failure;
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the Imposition of a cMI mof>etary penalty of up to
$1000 per day aivJ/or the imposition of an administralive compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor'®
representative as identified in Sedior> 1.11 and 1.12 of the General ProvWons. to execute ihe following
certification;

1  By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
aO appDcable provisions of Public taw 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vertdor N8merTV>o.Z.fl,xi.»

1/5/
Date name: M

Q^.c-h

EidtftB H • C«(lAcjition Ftcetrdino Vendor tntUb
Enwtronmeniel Tobeceo Smoke
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY
ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

AGREEMENT

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply wHh the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. •Business
Associate' shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covefed Entity'
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Healih arui Human Services.

(1 Dofinltlone.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' In section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of riUs 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Trtle 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. ■Deslonated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as tho term "designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aooreaation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. '^ealth Cara Qperatlons' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
In 45 CFR Section 164.501,

g. "HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TilleXlll. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Poriability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Iftdividuar shall have the same meaning as the term "individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a persona] representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule' shall moan the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behall of Covered Entity. ^

3/2014 ExNblt t Vendor
Heetlh ln*ur«nee PorlablCty Adneenn in«u<vnce rorwHU7 nw . .
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I. 'RflQuired bv Law' shaH have Iho same meaning as the term "required by laV In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'gecretarv' shaD mean the Secretary of the Department of Health end Human Services or
his/her designee.

n  'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards (or the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

Q nJnsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health Infomnation that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals er*d to developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Buslneae Associate Uee and DIsclosuyo of Protected Health information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services oirilined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy ar^d Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PH);
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the.terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c  To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for yj^hich it was
disclosed to the third party; and (11) en agreement from such third party to ratify Business
Associate, in accordance wilh the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall nol. unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In resporise to a
request for disclosure on the basis that H is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity.has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Businew

3.qoi4
CfMbil I Vendor InitlaU

HMlthlnturgncePoitibUityAct ,
BuUneuAuocUte Agreement
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Associate shell refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business ̂sociate
shaD be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such addilionel restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

<3) Obligations and Activltlea of Business Aaaoclate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes avrare of any use or disclosure of prote^cted
health information not provided for by this Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature land extent of the protected health Information Involved, including the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

Q The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to vrhom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to wfhich the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated. .

The Business Associate shall complele the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach and immadiately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Assodale shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

<J. Business Associate shall make available all of Its Internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Assodate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e  Business Associate shall require all of Us business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the usa and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, wtw> win be receiving^I

3/2014
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. . Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Enlity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliartce with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to en individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such emerxtment to enable Covered Enilty to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

1. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
reqtiest for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to futfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individuars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response, as soon as practicable.

I. Within ton (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in conrwction with the
Agreen>ent, ar\d shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destnjctlon Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or deslmdion infeasible. for so long as Buslnes^^^

3/2014 Erfilbltl Vendor Iftfllab.
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Coyored Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate ehatl certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObltQatlone of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Busir>ess Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such char*ge or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by lr>dividudls whose PHI may be used or
disdosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictiorw on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may effect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cauae

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered En% may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide en opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged tveach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feas'rble, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secrete^.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. DefinHions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein.
shaQ have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, time to lime as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security
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SMfcaatioD If anv term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
oerson(s) or circumstance Is beW invalid, such invalidity shaU not affect other terms or
wr»dition8 which can be given effect without the invafid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this ExhiW 1 are declared severable.

I  Survival Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
dMtrurtion of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in action (3) I. the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the .
standard terms and condiUons (P-37). shall survive the terminaUon of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Deparimenl of Heallh and Human Services

The State ^ _ Name of the Vendo^ ,

Sigr^tum of Auit?rt&J Represen^^^ Authorized Representative
f Irthc^iAJ h ,
Name of Authorized Representative Narne df Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Repm^ntattTO Title of Authorized Representabve

\
Date

\f \j£uyu.a*y 3. Z02.0
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CgRTIFICATlOH REQARDINQ THE FEDERAi. FUNDING ACCOUHTABILITV AND TRAN$PABEtiP.Y
^  act<ffataicowpliance

The Federal Funding AccountaWlily and Trenaparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awartees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after to ««
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tter sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modlflcdlions result in a total award equalto or over
$25 000 theawardlssubjecttotheFFATAreportlngrequlrements.esofthedateoftheawerd.
in accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subsward end ExecuUvo Compensation Information), the
Departmenl of Health and Human Services (OHMS) must report the following information lor any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding egency
4. nAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award tide descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10 Total compensation and names ol the top five executives if. . ...l.

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemmenl. and those
revenues are greater than $25MannuaBy and

10.2. Compensation information la not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA requiret) rJsta by the enr) of the month, plus 30 days, lr> which
the award or award amendment is made. . i i ...
The Vendor IdenUfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrws to wrnply
The Federal Funding Accountability end Transparency Act Public Law 109-282 end f ^ 10-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation InformaUon). and furwr agws
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following CertlficaUon: ^
The beicw named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as oi^med above to the NH Departmenl
of Health and Human Sen/ices and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act

VendorNamerTlic. rndr>+»J

Se "
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FORM A

As the Vendor Wantified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certiV that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1; The DUNS number for your entity Is: / f P

2  In your business or oiBanteation's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organteatioo
receive (1) 80 perceni or more of your artnual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgronls. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO yes

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to « above Is YES. please answer the (oOowing:

3  Does the public have access to informaiion about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organliatlon through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secunties
Exchange Ad of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to «3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five moat highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as foltows:

Name:.

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount'.

Anwunt

Amount

Amount:

Amount;

CUI0»MS/II07i)
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A. Definitions

The following terms, may be reflected and have the described moaning In this document;

1. "Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users end for en other than
authorized purjpose have access or potential access to personclly Identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Heatth
Information." Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term "Bredch* lr> section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident' Shall have the same moaning 'Computer Security
iDcldenr In section two (2) of NISI PubllcaUon 800-61. Computer Security incident
Har>dlino iSuide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information' or 'Confidenlial Data* means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to tha other such as all medical, health, financial, put>lic
assistance benants and persona) Information Including without iimitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
PersonaDy identifiable Informalion.

Confidenlial Informalion also includes any and ell Information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health ar>d
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Heatth Information (PHI), Personal Informalion (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and oonfidential information.

4. "End User' means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulatior>s promutgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident' means an act that potentially violates an explid! or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the" urwuthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent..Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacameni, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7  "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Depart^nt of Infomation
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFt.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8  "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
Of trace an Individuars identity, such as their name, social secunty number, ̂rsonal
inforrhatton as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359.C;19. blomelric recor^. et^
alone or when combined with other personal or identifying lnformaftor> which Is linked
or linkable to a specrfic individual, such as date and place of birth, mothers maiden
name. etc.

9  "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Idenlifialjle Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Stales Department of Health and Human Services.

10 "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as prowded in the
' definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §

160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12 "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
' not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Informetlon

■ unusable, unreadable, or Iridecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, main^in or transmit Confidential Infoimation
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
Includirw but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must rwi
use, disclose, mair»lain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose'^ any Confidential Information in response to a

Socurtly Roqulren>«ntj yj bo
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request for disclosure on the basis lhat rt is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by eddilional
restrictions over end above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In vtolallon of such additional
restrictions end must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an Ertd
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under iWs Contract may not be used (or
any other purposes that are r^t indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Appllcalion Ertcryption. If Er>d User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
applicatiori'a encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the intemet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transrriltting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email Is enervated and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Oropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ce/tifiod grourtd
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted ar>d password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networlis. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V8 LMlypdrtftlOWie ConlrwttflnWrtj
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wirelee# nelworfc. End User must employ a virtual private networit (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or tronsmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(8) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User- is emptoylng en SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data vri!!
be coded for 24-houf auto-doletlon cyde (I.e. Confidenlial Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Conftdentlal Data via wireless devices, a!)
date must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data end any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or pormitied
under this ConlracL To this end, the parlies must:

A. Retention

1. The Contrector egrees It vrin not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract oulslde of the United
Stales. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the implemonietion of
doud computing, doud service or doud storage capabilities, and Indudes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locatlor^s.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

t

3. The Contrador agrees lo provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contrector agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidentia) Data
In a secure locetion and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with ell applicablo statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anli-spam. anti-spyware. and anll-maiware utilities. The environment, as a
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%vhole. must have aggressive inlrusion-detecllon and firewall protection.
6  The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's

Chief information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sutxontractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract temnlnation; end will
obtain written certificaUon for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, arid or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for s.ecure deletion and media
aanitization. or otherwise physicaliy destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as descfibed in NIST Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitlzation, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce, The Contractor will document arid certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include ^1 details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and vaWated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be JoinUy
evaluated by the Stale and Coniractor prior to doslrucUon.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termln^on of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless olheniviso specified, within thirty (30) days of the temrilnatton of this
Contract, Contractor-agrees to completely destroy an electronic Confidential Data
by moans of data erasure, also Vnown as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees, to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1, The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the deuvery
of contracted services.

2 The Coniractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the Information lifecycle. whore applicable, {from
creation. Iransformalion, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc.).

PiMbnx Contrsctor InlUabVS. Lsstupdslft 1(VClS/18
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3 The Contractor will maintain aRpropriate aulhonticafion and access (xmtrois to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5 The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6  If the Conlractof will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagernent
'  supporting the services for Slate of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a

program of en internal process or processes that defines specific county
expectations, end monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7 The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all appliMble
State of New Hampshire end Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as ot
obtaining and maintaining access io any Department 5ystem(s). Agreernents will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors pnor to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor vwll execute a HIPAA Buslr^^ Associate Agreement
(BAA) v/ith the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9 The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a Sjretern
fiAanagement Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the l^.^^rnent and
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vutnerabilities that rn^
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be complet^
annually, or an alternate lime frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the ConUactor changes.

10. The Contractor will.not store, knowdngly or unknowingly, any Stale of Nw Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States i^ss
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Secunty Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Uability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take
prevent future breach and minimize eny damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The Slate shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach. Indudirtg but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mallirtg costs end
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contreclor must, comply with all applicable statutes end regulations rogarding the
privacy end security of Confidential Informatlen. and must in •all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI end PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and ̂ po of requirements applicable to federal agencies. Including,
but not Unrolled to. provtslons of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 5528). DHHS
Privacy Act ReguJaUons <45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for indlvldualty WenHfiable health
Information end as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security thai is not less than the level, and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doilArendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification end Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Stale's Privacy Officer arid the
Slate's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This Includes a conftdential Information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire networic

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above.
Implemented to protect ConfKJential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent dtsdosuro.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V3.Urtupd.lt 1008/18 ErtttllK ConlnttofWteU
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individually
identmable data derived from OHMS Data, must be stored In en area that Is
physically and techrtoiogically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as ndn^uty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
blometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. Including any
derivative files containing personalty identifiable information, and in bD cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portabte media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the drcumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name ar^d password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
B third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compilance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to corwiuct onsite Inspections to "monitor compilance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA.
and other applicable taws and Federal regulations until such time the Conftdentlal Data
is.disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTtNG

The Contractor must notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Hand!ir>g and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor witi:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of IncWenls
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notmcatlon is required, and, If so. Identify epprppriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents frorn among differerit
options, and bear costs assodaled with the Breach notice as well as any mlUgation
measures.

Inctdents end/or Breeches that implicate PI must be addressed end reported, es
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer.

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.90v

B. DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInfofmatfonSecurilyOffice@dhh8.nh.gov.

SccuHfy Requlremenb
P«90SofO ^J—l
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